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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the first annual report since the public listing
of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2015.

On 16 October 2014, the shares of the Company were
successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. On behalf of the Group, | would like
to express our deep gratitude towards all parties who have
assisted us in building our business over the years and bringing
our Company to the Main Board.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. We are an established contractor
in Hong Kong for more than 20 years with job references
both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the private
development sector. Our entry onto the Macau construction
market marked another milestone recently. The commitment of
our strong management team and dedicated staff to provide
quality work and services to our customers has played a vital
role in building up the Group’s reputation for its excellence in
expertise and experience.

When the news about housing supply targets, urban renewal
work plans, expansion of the mass transit railway network,
cross boundary infrastructure and so on came out, the
construction market was genuinely excited. The policy of
strengthening the integrated economic development among
Hong Kong, Zhuhai and Macau, the connection with the
national transportation hub and network and the strong
demand for housing, public facilities and the transportation
network arising from the increasing population in Hong
Kong can undoubtedly provide support for the sustainable
development of our society. The investment involving billions of
dollars requires substantial foundation works that present great
prospects and tremendous opportunities for the Group.
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However, the prolonged debates in the Legislative Council
during the year have led to a decrease in the number of
approved public projects this year. The basic construction
expense of the government was around HK$70 billion per year
in recent years. However, the Finance Committee had only
approved 13 new construction projects in 2013/14, which
involved funding of HK$3.6 billion. The delay in a number
of projects has also increased the risk associated with the
budget and progress in managing the construction works in
the industry. Fortunately, the above situation did not have a
material impact on the Group’s business during the year. We
have adjusted our plans in a timely manner and reallocated
resources originally reserved for public projects to other
projects, thus maintaining a high production capacity in both
the first and second half of the year and recorded a turnover
of HK$851 million and net profit of HK$219 million. In the
coming year, the Group plans to continue with its development
in Hong Kong and Macau. We will give priority to profitable
large-scale projects and at the same time capture suitable
market opportunities so as to balance the risks and sustain the
profitability.

The launch of all deferred projects at the same time is expected
to generate substantial challenge to the industry in terms of
allocation of resources and construction time. As a specialist
contractor for foundation works engaged in a capital intensive
business, expanding the capacity of our own machinery and
equipment can improve the effectiveness of construction
and manage cost efficiency. This initiative can also help us
prepare for the rise in wages and tight construction schedule
and increase the chance of securing large-scale projects.
Undertaking large-scale construction projects also presents
challenges. To meet these challenges, the Group must
prudently control its costs and cash flows, and manage its
financial aspects and resource allocation, in order to deliver
attractive returns on projects.

Looking ahead, the Board is positive about the prospects
of the construction market. As one of the most dependable
contractors in the foundation segment with a full range
of specialised machinery and equipment, an experienced
management team and decades of valuable project experience,
we are fully confident of the Group’s future development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
and appreciation to my fellow board members, management
team, staff members, suppliers, subcontractors, other
business partners and, most importantly, our shareholders and
customers for their support. The Group resolves to pursue
stronger development with a view to maximising returns to its
shareholders.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support,

the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK15 cents per share.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 June 2015
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Management

The Board is pleased to present the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”/“2015”), together
with the comparative figures for the corresponding year ended
31 March 2014 (the “Previous Year”/“2014”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year under review, the Group achieved an
outstanding performance with an increase of approximately
73% in the Group’s revenue to approximately HK$851 million
(2014: HK$493 million) from the provision of foundation works
and ancillary services. The encouraging financial result was
attributable to a few major projects undertaken during the Year.

Discussion and Analysis
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Major projects undertaken during Status as at Expected
the year ended 31 March 2015 31 March 2015 completion date
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Multi-storey Logistics Centre at Tsing Yi Completed

BREZEWMRAE L BlgT

Shatin to Central Rail Link Project Completed

WA ARIE B BlgT

Hotel Casino Project, Macau Completed

RPTEJE 5 TE B BIET

Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities Ongoing 2015/16

BBBEHERE HEITH

Composite Development Project, Macau Ongoing 2015/16

BPIREEEIEE HEATH

The construction works of three major projects, namely the

Multi-storey Logistics Centre at Tsing Vi, Shatin to Central Rail

Link Project and Hotel Casino Project, Macau were already

completed before the year-end date of 31 March 2015.

Among the two ongoing projects, only a small portion of

the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities remains to be

completed in mid-2015, while the Composite Development

Project, Macau, which mobilisation works took place in around
November 2014, is expected to be completed before the end
of the financial year ending 31 March 2016. Additional work
orders were recently requested by the contract customer to
extend the scope of works of the Composite Development
Project, Macau by more than one-half of the original number
of bored piles together with other changes. While the contract
value of this project is anticipated to exceed the previously
mentioned sum of approximately HK$463 million due to these
additional work orders, the final contract sum is subject to re-
measurement based on the actual volume of works performed.

SEAFEEAMNIRERFEALAH20154F3
AS1HRIET - BIESFSKZEMRFB L
WHRGRIEE MBPIBEESIER -

MIBMEETHIEES  BFBEHERGE
BR/NER D T2 2015 ER B - A
E2014F 11 AREARFIGREBEIBERTE
SR EE2016F3A31H LT BFE LR
BRI - & - BPIGGEBRRBEEMNS

WP ESOEMEINTIZFTE - B T 7%
HEMNIESE 2REABNEESL
REBIMBRB-Dz — Rk —LHMkE) -
BARLLEREITEE  ZTEMNENS
EIEE S 8B 2 A 12 B B9 49463,000,000
BT BERBRENSENESRETRE
TNIREFE -

=S -HFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWEDH

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The recent delays in funding approvals granted by the
Legislative Council have increased risks to the construction
market due to resources being tied up for certain public
infrastructure works with uncertain commencement dates.
While we have submitted tenders for certain public works
which were delayed due to pending budget approval by
the Legislative Council, we have also kept abreast of the
opportunities in the private sector. With the affirmative
housing policy and supply targets announced by the HKSAR
government to curb the over-heated residential market due
to accumulated property supply shortages, prospects for
the construction market are widely considered to be good
based on the increasing number of new construction projects.
Subsequent to the year end, the Group has confirmed a
new project, namely the Proposed Commercial/Residential
Development in Wong Tai Sin district.

New project confirmed subsequent
to 31 March 2015
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Status as at Expected
31 March 2015 completion date
R201563A31H sCE o a=R
H9 AR R

Not yet commenced 2016/17

Proposed Commercial/Residential

Development in Wong Tai Sin district
BEAIEEEERIAR

Subject to the execution of all phases of construction
works as stated in the contract for this project, the
aggregate contract sum is expected to be in the region of
HK$320 million (including all contingent and/or provisional
contract amounts) and this contract is expected to be
completed in 2017 or earlier.

The Directors remain positive about the prospects of
the construction industry attributable to the demand for
commercial and residential buildings and public infrastructure
developments in Hong Kong and Macau. Therefore, the Group
continues to expand its fleet of machinery and equipment.
While approximately HK$127 million was invested during
the Year to acquire additional foundation machinery and
equipment, the Group placed an equipment purchase order
of approximately HK$104 million subsequently in May 2015
to further enhance its construction capacity and efficiency.
For more details of this purchase order, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Cost of sales increased by approximately 67% to HK$545
million (2014: HK$327 million) at a lesser rate as compared
to the revenue’s growth of approximately 73%, resulting
in an improvement in gross margin to approximately 36%
(2014: 34%). This mainly reflects the enhanced operational
efficiency due to the timing of contracts awarded or
commenced both in the first and second half of the Year and
the subsequently shorter time between completion of one
project and re-mobilising for a new project. The components
in the costs of sales remain largely consistent as those of
the Previous Year. While variable costs such as construction
materials, labour costs, subcontracting fees and parts
and consumables are largely dependent on the volume of
construction activities undertaken, depreciation charges, which
increased to approximately HK$15 million for the Year (2014:
HK$10 million), mainly correlate to the Group’s investments in
acquiring machinery and equipment.

Administrative expenses of approximately HK$55 million almost
doubled compared to the Previous Year (2014: HK$29 million).
The increase was mainly attributable to the professional fees
related to the Company’s initial public offering (the “IPO”) of
approximately HK$12 million; legal and professional fees and
provision related to legal and arbitration proceeding arising
from operations and consultancy fees of approximately HK$12
million; as well as the increase in salaries and wages and other
administrative expenses.

Finance costs for the Year were approximately HK$14
million (2014: HK$10 million), representing an increase of
approximately 40%, mainly resulting from the drawdown of
borrowings for acquisition of machinery and equipment and for
working capital during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF WA

Income tax expense increased from approximately HK$3 million
in the Previous Year to approximately HK$22 million in the
Year, mainly due to the increase in estimated assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong and Macau profits tax and deferred
taxation arising from the accelerated depreciation allowance.
The effective tax rate was about 9% (2014: 2%) which was
lower than the statutory tax rates. The main reason was
attributable to the intra-group leasing income not subject to
Hong Kong and Macau tax, the details of which can be referred
to in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 September
2014 (the “Prospectus”). The increase of this effective tax
rate during the Year was mainly attributable to the increase
in estimated assessable profits arising from the increased
contract value of foundation works and ancillary services
performed by the Group in Hong Kong during the Year when
compared to the Previous Year.

As a result, profit after income tax of the Group was
approximately HK$219 million which was approximately 72%
higher than that of approximately HK$127 million for the
Previous Year. The net margin remained stable at about 26%
(2014: 26%).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group generated net cash
inflow from operating activities of approximately HK$147
million, together with the availability of short term bank loans
and overdrafts, thus the Group has been financially sound
in its daily operations throughout the Year. A distribution of
HK$50 million final dividends relating to the Previous Year was
also paid out in cash from the Group’s retained earnings during
the Year prior to the reorganisation.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$240 million (2014: HK$122
million) mainly denominated in HK$ and MOP. The increase in
total cash and bank balances was mainly due to the receipt of
net proceeds from the IPO of approximately HK$117 million,
after the deduction of underwriting fees and commission and
expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$326 million (2014: HK$337 million)
denominated in either HK$ or MOP. Borrowings usually include
short-term and long-term bank loans, finance leases and
overdrafts and carry variable interest rates. Among the total
borrowings, approximately HK$111 million (2014: HK$121
million) were short-term bank loans and bank overdrafts and
approximately HK$75 million (2014: HK$59 million) was the
current portion of long-term bank loans and obligations under
finance lease due within 12 months based on the respective
scheduled repayment terms.

The Group’s net gearing ratio, calculated by dividing net
borrowings by total equity, was 0.23 times as at 31 March
2015 (2014: 1.10 times). For the purpose of calculating
the Group’s net gearing ratio, net borrowings represent
the aggregate of total borrowings minus cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
balances for securing the Group’s revolving loan. As at 31
March 2015, the Group’s net current assets were HK$199
million (2014: net current liabilities of HK$115 million)
and current ratio, calculated by current assets divided by
current liabilities, was 1.78 times (2014: 0.66 times). These
improvements in the Group’s financial position were mainly
attributable to the strengthening of the capital base of the
Company upon the public listing of the Company’s shares
since 16 October 2014 (“the Listing”) and the net profits
generated from the Group’s operations during the Year, which
largely contributed to the increase in the Group’s total equity
to approximately HK$528 million as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$219 million).

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures
by internally generated resources, long-term bank loans
and finance leases. During the Year, the Group invested
approximately HK$127 million (2014: HK$95 million) in the
expansion of its fleet of machinery and equipment. Upon
the Listing, the capital contribution from the Company’s
shareholders became an additional source of finance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF WA

Use of Net Proceeds from IPO

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 May
2015, the Board resolved to reallocate the use of the IPO net
proceeds for financing the expansion of the Group’s machinery
and equipment by removing the restriction on the number and
the mix of each kind of machinery and equipment to increase
flexibility. The adjusted proposed use of the net proceeds
include (i) approximately 90% or approximately HK$105
million to acquire and/or partly finance the expansion of the
Group’s machinery and equipment, including but not limited to
crawler cranes, oscillators, reverse circulation drills and other
foundation-related equipment and ancillaries from Asian and/
or European machinery suppliers; and (ii) approximately 10%
or approximately HK$12 million to be used as general working
capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2015 and up to the date of this report, the
Company had not utilised any of the net proceeds and has
deposited the entire amount of the net proceeds in the
Company’s bank accounts.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in HK$ and
MOP and its revenue, expenses, cash and bank balances,
borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$ and MOP. For the Year, the Group was not
exposed to significant foreign currency risk nor had employed
any financial instrument for hedging.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2015, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two (2014: one) foundation works and
ancillary services projects of the Group of approximately HK$67
million and HK$29 million, respectively (2014: HK$67 million),
the Group did not have material contingent liabilities. The
performance bonds are expected to be released in accordance
with the terms of the respective construction contracts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2015, the net book amount of plant and
equipment held under finance leases and pledged for long term
bank loans amounted to approximately HK$151 million (2014:
HK$114 million) and approximately HK$108 million (2014:
HK$99 million), respectively. Certain banking facilities of the
Group were secured by the Group’s bank deposits of HK$17
million (2014: HK$10 million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$16 million (2014: HK$105 million) in relation
to acquisitions of machinery and equipment.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF WA

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a pre-
approved list which admission is subject to assessment of their
background (including track record, pricing, market reputation,
timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales service)
and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors
consider that we have maintained good business relationships
with these suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During
the year, there was no material delay or dispute related to them
causing disruption to our operations. Some of them also have
developed good trading history of over years with our Group.

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensuring safety
at the works sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had approximately 228
(2014: 252) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’'s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Qur Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with
its foundation works and ancillary services, in particular,
large diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed
steel H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded
the I1ISO 14001:2004 (environment management system
accreditation) and renewed the certificate during the year after
passing the relevant audits conducted by external certification
body. Our Group also monitors continuously on the compliance
to the customer’s environmental protection requirements and
relevant laws and regulations. During the year, our Group has
not been prosecuted by any governmental authority for any
purported breach of any applicable environmental laws and
regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Upon the date of Listing up to 31 March
2015, the Company had complied with all the code provisions,
where applicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules upon Listing. Having
made specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the period from the date of Listing to 31
March 2015.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 27 to 31 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.
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TEERRE

Board meetings

The Board held two meetings between the date of Listing
and 31 March 2015, at approximately quarterly intervals.
All directors attended both meetings, at which business
development, investment strategies, financial performance and
potential risks relating to the daily operations of the Group,
were discussed. The Company expects to schedule at least
four Board meetings a year, with special Board meetings being
scheduled as required.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2015, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company held a
training for regulatory and compliance update for all directors
during the year and intended to arrange another training
for them to refresh their knowledge on the same in the
forthcoming year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made
up of three independent non-executive directors including Mr.
Ip Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held one meeting between the date of
Listing and 31 March 2015, which was attended by all of its
members, to review the unaudited interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2014 and
the external auditor reported the results of their work in relation
to the agreed-upon procedures on interim financial statements.
Subsequent to 31 March 2015, the audit committee held
one meeting, which was also attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee annually reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board (including its mix of skills,
knowledge and experience), makes recommendations on
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors, and assesses
the independence of independent non-executive directors. It
also oversees the implementation of the Company’s policy on
diversity of directors. It is made up of four members including
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu
Tak Sum, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-
executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive
director.
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TEERRE

The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

No meeting of the nomination committee was held between
the date of Listing and 31 March 2015. Subsequent to 31
March 2015, a meeting was held which was attended by all of
its members, to review the Board structure and composition
and recommend the rotation and re-election of directors in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all the directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy for approval by the Board. It is made up of four members
including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman), Professor Wong Sue
Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent
non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive
director.

No meeting was held between the date of Listing and 31
March 2015. Subsequent to 31 March 2015, the remuneration
committee held one meeting, which was attended by all of its
members, to review the remuneration policy of the directors
and senior management.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
28(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser
to conduct annual review on the internal control system
of the Group for the year and reported their findings and
recommendations to the audit committee and the Board.
It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that
key internal control measures are carried out appropriately
and are functioning as intended. During the year, the overall
management controls and the revenue and work-in-progress
cycle were reviewed and found that adequate controls are in
place.
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The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance risks
or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt with in
a proper manner, while significant issues are reported back
to the Board for their attention. The Company also compiles
monthly reports to the Board (including independent non-
executive directors) to update the latest financial performance,
position and prospects of the Group.

The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company also published voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
during the year and it has intended to put it into practice
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001
and OHSAS 18001 to ensure that the Group’s services meet
the requisite health and safety, quality and environmental
requirements. During the year, the Group passed the audits
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conducted by external consultants and renewed these
certificates. Upon completion of pile construction, the Group is
required to engage external professionals to conduct various
applicable tests on all piles based on the relevant contractual
requirements and ensure full compliance with customer
requirements. Subject to these piling records available to the
customers for their testing and inspection, the authorised
persons employed by the customers certify the value of the
works completed in the payment certificates issued to the
Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and monitoring
systems have already been embedded in the daily operations
of the foundation works business.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system at its Board meeting on 24 June 2015, including
its financial, operational and compliance controls, and its
risk management functions. The Board’s review included a
consideration of the internal control evaluations conducted by
the executive management, the findings of the external auditors
during the annual audit and the internal control review reported
by an internal control adviser engaged by the Company.
There was no material fraud or errors came to the attention of
the Board from all these sources. Therefore, the Board was
satisfied that the risk management and internal control systems
were in place and implemented effectively during the year
without significant weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2015
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.5 million (2014: HK$0.8 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.2 million (2014: HK$0.5 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the
audit for the year ended 31 March 2015 and agreed-upon
procedures on interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2014,

The remuneration paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
in respect of the services related to the placing and public offer
and other permissible non-audit services amounted to HK$4.2
million and HK$0.4 million, respectively, over the years from
2012 to 2014.
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TEERRE

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 44 to 45 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 31 of this annual
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company between the date of Listing and 31
March 2015.
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TEERRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

During the year, the Company held a few investor luncheons
and media meetings for them to understand more on the
business, strategies and performance of the Group. The
Company also published voluntary announcements on the
Stock Exchange website to update the market about its new
contracts awarded.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 72, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation process,
research and development and formulation of overall corporate
policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother of Mr.
Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of Ms.
Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 63, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms.
Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 61, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of Mr.
Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of Ms.
Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 68, is an executive director. She is
also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group. She
joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for the
administrative and human resources matters of the Group
and has been involved in the management of the Group for
over 20 years. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in July
1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of Ms.
Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr.
Lau Chun Ka.
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EENEREEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 70, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
philosophy in mathematics from the University of Alberta in
Canada. He is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and
Chevalier dans I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of
France, and elected as a member of the European Academy of
Sciences. Currently, he is the Vice-President (Development &
External Relations), the Chair Professor of Mathematics and the
Director of the Liu Bie Ju Centre for Mathematical Sciences at
City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 30 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’'s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Henry Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 859).

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a master’s degree of arts
from Trinity College, Cambridge University in 1988. Mr. Ip’s
work focuses on fund raising for listed and unlisted companies,
and management of real estate investment funds. He is a
director of Altus Capital Limited where he is involved in the
supervision and management of corporate finance and advisory
work for companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224) and an independent
non-executive director of Pak Fah Yeow International Limited
(stock code: 239), each of which is a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of
Japan Residential Assets Manager Limited, the manager of a
real estate investment trust listed in Singapore, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hsu Kam Yee, Simon, aged 60, is also a director of
certain subsidiaries within the Group. He is responsible for
the business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of
the Group. He obtained a master’'s degree in business
administration from The University of East Asia in Macau
in 1989. He has more than 30 years’ experience in the
construction industry. He is a member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He was a
director of Tysan Foundation Limited from 1994 to 1996, China
Overseas Foundation Limited from 1996 to 2000, Hsin Chong
(Foundations) Limited and Hsin Chong (Foundations) Asia
Limited from 2000 to 2001.

Mr. Jesse, Colin John, aged 62, is an adviser to the
Board. He is responsible for advising the Board on overall
development strategies in the construction and foundation
industries. He has over 40 years of experience in the
construction industry. He has worked for major construction
and engineering companies as senior executive including
Leighton Bruckner Foundation Engineering Limited from 1984
to 1993, Daido Construction Company Limited from 1993 to
1997, Evans and Peck (Hong Kong) Company Limited from
1997 to 2010 and Bechtel HK Limited from 2010 to 2012.
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EENEREEERE

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 41, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors’ relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

Mr. Wan Kwok Choi, aged 48, is the quantity surveying
and purchasing manager of the Group. He is responsible for
quantity surveying matters and preparation of tenders and
quotations for the Group. He joined the Group in March 1996
and has over 17 years of experience in foundation works.

Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 51, is the project
manager of the Group. He is responsible for the supervision
of foundation projects of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of experience in
the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in July 1987 and
a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in September 1994. He is currently
a registered professional engineer under the Engineer
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and a member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.
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Mr. Chan Chun Fung, Agnew, aged 57, is the project
manager of Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited. He worked
for the Group from February 2001 to July 2012 and re-joined
the Group in February 2014. He is responsible for execution
of designated projects of the Group. He has over 24 years
of experience in survey and project aspects. He obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in surveying from The University of New
South Wales in Australia in 1991 and a master’'s degree in
Survey Science from the same university in 1993. In 1993, he
qualified as a Graduate Surveyor from the Institute of Surveyors
in New South Wales, Australia. He has been a member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineering Surveyor since 2000.

Mr. Lui Ping Sum, aged 51, is the plant manager of the
Group. He worked for the Group from July 2001 to June
2006, and then re-joined the Group in January 2013. He is
responsible for the maintenance and repair of the machinery
and equipment. He has over 20 years of experience in the
maintenance and repair of machinery and equipment.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, is the company secretary of the
Company. He obtained a diploma of business administration
from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an accredited mediator of The
Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He has over 20 years company
secretarial experience.
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Director’s Report
EEERE

The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
17 September 2012 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman lIslands. In
preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Group underwent the reorganisation pursuant
to which the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 15 September
2014. For details of the group reorganisation, please refer to
the paragraph headed “History and Corporate Structure —
Reorganisation” in the Prospectus.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 16 October 2014.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are

set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 46 of this annual report.
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The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK15 cents per share, amounting to approximately
HK$60 million, representing approximately 27% dividend
ratio on an annual basis. Such payment of dividends will be
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
7 September 2015 and are payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at
the close of business on 15 September 2015. It is expected
that the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about
5 October 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last four years is set out on page
140 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1 million.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2015,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$118 million (2014: nil).
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SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2015
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities since the date of Listing up to 31 March 2015.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.
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Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), which also
represented 10% of the shares as at the date of this annual
report. The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit
with shareholders’ approval provided that each such renewal
must not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as
at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules,
an option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee
at any time during the Option Period in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and the terms on which the option was
granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.
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The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c)
the nominal value of the shares on the offer date of the relevant
option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick*
Mr. Chu Tak Sum*
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold*

* (appointed on 15 September 2014)

In accordance with article 83 of the Company’s articles of
association, Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Chu
Tak Sum and Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HIEEERA A

THEEREFEET  RNEABRATH
BERATRSE : () ZPAXEREBER
REHNBH(ARRZH)BELNSE®RE
R U E 5 (0)BE PN B AR
MEREZHVAHITAARZBEELNE
B MERMBROD B FHRHE - R
MRAEREBREZNAHNEE -

St B R IR A B R+ E R A o

BEx

RAEFENEATE B HIENEATES
mF :

MITER

BIIREASCAE (£/5)
BIR B 55 A& (7T A8 %)
R L AL
REHL L

BIMIEATESR

T EHER
REREE
ERBEE

* (JA2014F9R 158 EEE)

REBEARFASERADRNFESSF T2
BB AEREERERBEESKER
BRBFAGLER  ANFEERERE
fF o

ARBICEESUBYIFNTESREL
AR RIS 313K E B 1 1 L 0 1
RE - ARBRBRABBULIFATESRY
NEBRBEILIENENK -



DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for transactions in connection with the Reorganisation in
preparation for the Listing of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange, as disclosed in the Prospectus and save
for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies was a party and in which
a director or controlling shareholders of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 27 to 31.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
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Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@)

Name of director

Eeng

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
BRALE

Ms. Leung Lai So

REHZ LT

Company:

Name of director

EEns

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
2RS4

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
2R & &

Ms. Leung Lai So
RBEHLL

Ms. Leung Lai So
2BEHLL

Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each held (long position)
FESREEIIEINEEREE (#8)

300,000,000

300,000,000

Name of

associated corporation

B EEEE

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited
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Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the

Number of shares

RG&E

Long position 61 shares
RE61K

Long position 10,000 shares
& 210,000

Long position 61 shares
RE61K

Long position 10,000 shares
&£10,0008%

AR R AE R RORR T

Percentage of

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
BERESE =37
75% Founder of a discretionary trust
FRETNRIHA
75% Beneficiary of a discretionary trust
PRGN @A
b) EBEFRARFEBEENERS

shareholding  Capacity
ERESE Hf6

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
2RETNADA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
2RETNEIBA

100% Benéficiary of a discretionary trust
2REANTHEA

100% Beneficiary of a discretionary trust

2RERNZEA



So far as the directors are aware, the interest and short
positions of the persons, other than a director or chief
executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares
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of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c) Substantial shareholders’ interests in the Company

Number of ordinary shares
Name of shareholder

= FEEREEIBINEEREE (FR)
Actiease Assets Limited 300,000,000
Silver Bright Holdings Limited 300,000,000
Managecorp Limited 300,000,000
as trustee of a unit trust
Managecorp Limited
(EREBREENZFEAN)
Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited 300,000,000

Notes:

1. 300,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets Limited,
a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings Limited
which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which
Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Limited is 100% held by Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust, of which issued units are 100%
held by Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited (formerly known
as DBS Trustee H.K. (Jersey) Limited) as trustee of a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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of HK$0.01 each held (long position)

shareholding  Capacity
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75% Beneficial owner

BEREAA

75% Interest of a controlled
corporation
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75% Trustee
A
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 99.7% (2014: 98.7%)
of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 37.3% (2014: 88.2%) of the Group’s total
turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 62.2% (2014: 86.3%) of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 17.7% (2014: 50.5%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 25 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group had the
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RFEREXRS

NEZE2015F3A31B LEE » AEEH

following continuing connected transactions: HEMESSIT
Tenancy Agreements & 1
Name of landlords Term of lease agreements Monthly rent Annual rent
EXEB HEHBRFH SAHES 5582
(HKS) (HKS)
(BT) (BL)
Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group
HEFRMEURELEBNERTZRARESLSE
Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2012 ~ 31/7/2014 150,000 2,040,000
REERLDA 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 180,000
Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors
HEXTENERFENURAEESHNER
Cheer Wealth International 1/10/2012 ~ 30/9/2014* 73,000 876,000
Development Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 73,000
ERBERERARAA
East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/10/2012 ~ 30/9/2014* 3,800 45,600
RAGCEERAR 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 3,800
Cheer Profit International 1/10/2012 ~ 30/9/2014* 3,800 45,600
Enterprise Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 3,800
BENBREERRA A
Long Ascent Development Limited 1/10/2012 ~ 30/9/2014* 50,000 600,000
RAZEARAA 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 50,000
Healthy World Investment Limited 1/10/2012 ~ 30/9/2014* 50,000 600,000
REKREFRNAE 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 50,000
Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 4,207,200
HZ201553A31ALEENRZAE
Annual cap as disclosed in the Prospectus PRERFMBEENFE LR
For the year ended 31 March 2015 EZE2015F3A31HLEEE 4,207,200
For the year ending 31 March 2016 BZE201653A31HIEFE 4,327,200
For the year ending 31 March 2017 HZE201743A31BIEEE 4,327,200
* These agreements were terminated and superseded with effect from 1 * ZEWMZEB2014F8A 1A BR IE R
August 2014. B o
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal
commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So,
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred
above constituted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 41 to 42 in this annual report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 25 to the financial
statements.
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MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2015, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$472 million
based on the total number of 400,000,000 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$1.18 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
since the date of Listing during the year ended 31 March 2015
and as at the date of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year is included in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report on pages 4 to 15.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 March 2015 and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To The Shareholders of Sam Woo Construction Group
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 46 to 139, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
meftmElEE

For the year ended 31st March 2015 E{£2015F3A31H L F /%

Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31BILLEE

2015 2014
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt = FERT FHET
Revenue WA 5 851,285 492,734
Cost of sales HERA 7 (545,040) (327,100)
Gross profit EM 306,245 165,634
Other income and gain, net H bz M A5 — 558 6 3,217 2,867
Administrative expenses THFAX 7 (55,362) (29,447)
Operating profit £ 5 ) 254,100 139,054
Finance income EETON 8 1,277 583
Finance costs M5 &R 8 (14,367) (9,742)
Finance costs, net MBS ER—F8E 8 (13,090) (9,159)
Profit before income tax k& BT 15 B4 A i A 241,010 129,895
Income tax expense FriS®if X 9 (21,842) (2,809)
Profit for the year F 25 A 219,168 127,086
Other comprehensive income H 2w A - =
Profit and total comprehensive KR BIERIEA AL F
income attributable to equity PETTONE-
holders of the Company 219,168 127,086
Basic and diluted earnings FRERNREERRN (B
per share (HK cents) 11 63.39 42.36

The notes on pages 51 to 139 are an integral part of these FH1E139B 2 M Bt EHRE M BHRE
consolidated financial statements. ZHKE S o

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A



Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment et B 3% 1
Deferred income tax assets RIEFEMEE
Deposits and prepayments e RIEFRIE
Current assets REBEE
Trade and retention receivables JEWRE S HIEBERRE S

Deposits, prepayments and e BENZER

other receivables B {th jE W 508
Amounts due from customers JEWRFE4HTIEEE

for contract work

JE 5 A BSE 1~ ) RIE
JR& W P 15 554

R HIERAT A A

Amount due from a related company
Income tax receivable

Restricted bank balances
Short-term bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents BEeRReEED
(excluding bank overdraft) (TRERITES)
Total assets EE#E
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital & 7
Reserves &
Total equity RSB

The notes on pages 51 to 139 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Note
B 7%

13
18
14

14

14

15
25(d)

16
16

16

ReEERER

As at 31st March 2015 72015F3A31H

As at 31 March

ASHS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHE T T T
509,245 398,832
233 3,602
3,911 1,368
513,389 403,802
202,367 78,586
3,308 3,115
27,054 19,481
- 386
- 27
55,041 36,138
8,000 =
177,061 85,937
472,831 223,670
986,220 627,472
4,000 =
523,780 218,719
527,780 218,719

FH1E1398 2 M AL FiR A M ®wEK
ZHERED ©

—ZE-hFFHR ‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ReEERER

As at 31st March 2015 720153 A31H

As at 31 March

MA3HA31H
2015 2014
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B =E FHBxT FHT
LIABILITIES =K+
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Long-term borrowings RHEER 21 122,510 37,806
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFSM AR 18 41,818 31,846
Amount due to a director B —RESFIE 20, 25(d) 20,125 =
184,453 69,652
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and retention payables BB SHBERRE S 19 36,936 14,873
Accruals and other payables FEErRIBREMENHIE 19 16,586 22,284
Amounts due to customers ENEFAEHNTIESE
for contract work 15 6,834 -
Borrowings R 21 203,423 298,876
Income tax payable FER SR 10,208 3,068
273,987 339,101
Total liabilities EE8E 458,440 408,753
Total equity and liabilities EERABAHE 986,220 627,472

The financial statements on pages 46 to 139 were approved by F 4621398 2 B K R & B 18201556 A
the Board of Directors on 24 June 2015 and were signed on its AREEESHE - WA TIATRESE

behalf. Z o
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
24 9 REH
Director Director
EE EZE

The notes on pages 51 to 139 are an integral part of these FH1E139B Z M B ERE M B HRE
consolidated financial statements. ZHKE D o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 April 2013
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year
Contribution by and
distribution to owner
Dividends relating to the
year ended 31 March 2013
paid to the then shareholders
(note 10)

At 31 March 2014

At 1 April 2014

Comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Contribution by and
distribution to owner

Issuance of shares (note 17)

Dividends relating to the year
ended 31 March 2014 paid
to the then shareholders
(note 10)

At 31 March 2015

For the year ended 31st March 2015 # 2201543 A31H LF/E

nv_\é%é@E}J%

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
BEA BRHEE HafkE KREBRF Bt
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THEr  TAERL FTHT FTHT FTHAT
(note 17(b))
(B =E17(b)
R2013F4 818 = = 10,500 131,133 141,633
2HHEA
R E & A - - - 127,086 127,086
BEANHER
B B 0 2R
ST ERREAE RS
HZ=2013F3A31H
IEEERAR S (HF10)
= = - (50,000) (50,000
R2014%F3831H - = 10,500 208,219 218,719
20144818 - - 10,500 208,219 218,719
ZEBA
R E S A - - - 219,168 219,168
BEANHERD
HEEHND R
BT D (HTEE17) 4,000 135,893 - - 139,893
IR TERRREH
HE20145
SABIHLEFER
RS (ME10) - - - (50,000) (50,000)
#2015%F3831H 4,000 135,893 10,500 377,387 527,780

The notes on pages 51 to 139 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FE1E139A 2RI FHE M BT HRE
ZHERED ©
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50

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHERER

For the year ended 31st March 2015 E{£2015F3A31H L F /%

Note
B 2
Cash flows from operating activities KEEE THNEEHE
Net cash generated from operations KEEHAMSIRES/FEE  24(a)
Interest paid =ENEESS
Interest received B F B
Interest element of finance lease MERENZTAOF B

payments _ 8

Restricted bank balances PR HI 4R 17 45 16
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refund (BfY) /REHBEFEH
Net cash generated from operating &EZEEHFBREEFHE
activities
Cash flows from investing activities REREEZBNRERE
Purchase of plant and equipment BEEM R EE
Prepayment for purchase of plant and & & # i & & 5 19
equipment TR FRIE
Proceeds from sales of plant and ﬁ’ifr%ﬂi&uxﬁﬂ’\]
equipment B 15 3838 24(b)

Decrease/(increase) in restricted S [ 4 3R 17 45 4

bank balances B (HE BE)
Increase in short-term bank deposits %2 HA 4R 1717 7K 1& n
Net cash used in investing activities REFZBH AR L FE

Cash flows from financing activities REBETBENEERE

Capital element of finance lease MEREMNROELRLS
payments \

Drawdown of long-term bank loans PR R = BRSRAT BT AR

Repayment of long-term bank loans EERPEITER

Drawdown of short-term bank loans REVE IR 1TTE R

Repayment of short-term bank loans Lajaﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁgm

Increase in restricted bank balances PR Il #R 1T 45 B2 3L N 16

Proceeds from issuance of EITE B

MR 2 P15 IR
ordinary shares
>

Share issuance costs BpEETE
Dividend paid B A% B

Net cash generated from financing REFZBFEREFE
activities

Net increase in cash and cash RERBELESEYEMTFEER

equivalents

RENNRE KRS EFEY

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents atend REKNRERBELEEEY
of the year
Analysis of cash and cash ReRESEB/YIN
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBFeEEY 16
Bank overdraft RITEX 21

The notes on pages 51 to 139 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

Year ended 31 March
HZ3A3MBLLEE

2015 2014
HK$ 000  HK$ 000
FET FET
181,610 114,062
(10,845) (7,893)
1,277 583
(3,397) (1,782)
(20,443) (17,138)
(1,334) 294
I 146,868 ¢ 88,126
(65,115) (84,794)
(2,030) (1,036)
2,505 -
9,300 (9,300)
(8,000) -
I (63,340) (95,180)
(25,261) (21,146)
61,028 102,983
(100,267) (22,791)
158,818 280,764
(140,400) (238,130)
(7,760) (9,700)
150,000 —
(10,107) -
(50,000) (50,000)
ol 36,051 | ¢ 41,980
119,579 34,976
57,482 22,506
177,061 57,482
177,061 85,937
- (28,455)
177,061 57,482

FS51E130B 2 Mt Bt FR G MR K
2R ER D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND REORGANISATION

1.1

1.2

General information

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 September 2012 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in foundation works and
ancillary services in Hong Kong and Macau (the
“Business”).

The Company has listed its shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 16 October 2014.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise
stated.

Reorganisation

Prior to the completion of the group reorganisation
set out under the section “History and Corporate
Structure” in the Prospectus, which was completed
on 15 September 2014 (the “Reorganisation”),
companies now comprising the Group (collectively
the “Operating Companies”) were principally held
under Sam Woo Group Limited (“SW (BVI)”), of
which the sole shareholder was Actiease Assets
Limited (“Actiease Assets”).

e B HmRME

1 —RERREA

1.1

1.2

=HNREEEERARAR (TR
A @) R2012F9R17H B
BREHSENFE2E(AA
E) (196155013 » iz E

BRI AN) fEF 2 B S s A2
RERRER AR - KR AH
#E fft 9% = 55 #b Ak {7 A Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

ARRR/REZERAR - ME
MEQR (SR AKE]) X E
REBIBFIEEMETER
MY AR5 (1375 ]) e

KR A ZEBHR2014F10A
16ERBEBB AR ZFAERA
RIEMR T o

BEBMEI  REMBRE
ARBT(ET] 2 -

B4

RIBRERIEE RIFERE]
— TR B EA ([EH])
TR Z AT (B4 R2014F9A
15HZEK) AEEETEAQ
A ([ EERR]) HEERH
Sam Woo Group Limited ([ =
BV 1) #FHFAH - MW =HMBVI)
/) ME — % 3 & Actiease Assets
Limited ([ Actiease Assets ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND REORGANISATION

(Continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

On 15 September 2014, Actiease Assets transferred
its entire interest in the issued share capital of SW
(BVI) to the Company by crediting the Company’s
existing one nil-paid share in issue as fully paid and
the Company allotting and issuing 999 additional
shares, credited as fully paid, to Actiease Assets.
Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the
Company has become the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group.

On 15 September 2014, pursuant to the written
resolution passed by the shareholders on 15
September 2014, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$10,000,000 by the creation of an additional
962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 16 October 2014, pursuant to the Capitalisation
Issue (as mentioned in the Prospectus), the
Company issued additional 299,999,000 shares,
credited as fully paid, to Actiease Assets.

On 16 October 2014, pursuant to the Share Offer
(as mentioned in the Prospectus), the Company
issued a total 100,000,000 shares at a price of
HK$1.50 per share.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND REORGANISATION
(Continued)

1.3 Basic of presentation

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation,
the Business has been conducted by the Operating
Companies, principally under SW (BVI). Pursuant to
the Reorganisation, the Business was transferred
to and held by the Company. The Company has
not been involved in any other business prior to the
Reorganisation and does not meet the definition
of a business. The Reorganisation is merely a
reorganisation of the Business with no change in
management of such business. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented using the carrying values of the Business
under SW (BVI) for all years presented.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the

preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the

Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and have been prepared under the

historical cost convention.

1

2

e B HmRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

(a) New, revised and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The following amendments to standards and
interpretation are mandatory for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1 April 2014 and have
been adopted by the Group:

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments:
Presentation on Asset and
Liability Offsetting

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Recoverable Amount Disclosure
for Non-Financial Assets

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement - Novation
of Derivatives

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Consolidation for Investment Entities

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The adoption of these new standards,
amendments and interpretation to the existing
standards does not have any significant
impact to the results and financial position of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

54 SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted

The following new standards and amendments
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2014 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative @

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
(Amendment) of Depreciation and
Amortisation
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Bearer Plants @

(Amendment)
HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans:
(Amendment) Employee Contribution

HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method @
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ©

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendment) between an Investor and its
Associate and Joint Venture ©

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment Entities: Applying
HKAS 28 (Amendment) the Consolidation Exception @

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)  Joint Arrangements - Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operation @

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(®)

New and amended standards not yet adopted

(Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 cycle

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2012 - 2014 cycle ©

M Effective for the Group for annual period

beginning on 1 July 2014.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period

beginning on 1 January 2016.

® Effective for the Group for annual period

beginning on 1 July 2016.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2017.

©® Effective for the Group for annual period

beginning on 1 January 2018.

Management is in the process of making
an assessment on the impact of these
new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretation but is not in a position to
determine whether they will have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the revised listing rules on
disclosure of financial information with
reference to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as
from the Company’s financial year ending on
31 March 2016 with early adoption permitted.
The Group has early adopted these revised
listing rules in these consolidated financial
statements, as a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial
statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group applies merger accounting to
account for business combinations under
common control, including the Reorganisation
described in note 1.2, where all assets and
liabilities are recorded at predecessor carrying
amounts, as if the combining entities have
been consolidated from the date when they
first came under the control of the controlling
party, and differences between consideration
payable and the net assets value are taken to
the merger reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

Except for the Reorganisation, the Group
applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EABTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 KWBRAFR (&)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 22148 AR (&)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the gain or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to confirm with the Group’s
accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries are required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of

the operating segments, has been identified as the

executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$,
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant
and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.6).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated balance sheet (notes 2.10 and 2.12).

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date - the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Leased assets

The Group leases certain machinery and equipment.
Leases of machinery and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased machinery
and equipment and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and
other long-term payables. The interest element of
the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The machinery and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

2 EXRSHBEERMEGE)

2.8

2.9

TREEREE)

11 350 (L 185 18 < B X L 1R B FRDRR
D ML T EEE A RR IR 2
ERRERELENSHAE
(IMEBANEEFRNE) -
A1l 0] 18 (E FERR MR BB 18 -
TREEEEBERAER

HEEE

AEBEEEE TR NRE -
EAKERARMEREEE
P HE B 4B K &F 0 L B K [
HRERREREEERR
RBEHE BMEHELEHE
FIa R IR E MM LR EH D
FEAKERENFREME
MBEERTER -

BEESRBBERMBRAXZ
B # - EIHRESRED
BELLE - HEHEESEEN
B ISR SRR AR MR B e
HMRHERNARER MK E
R A S a8 NEE MR ELR
EEEPERAZE ARG
EHRNAERBEEFETE
Bt = - RIZEE B AR
R REEEENA EHBFH
REEHRME 2 HNEEE
RIE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EABTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables 2.10 fEUNE 55078 & H fib fE WK IA

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’'s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of a provision
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “administrative expenses”. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably and it is probable that
the contract will be profitable, contract revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the stage of completion. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at
the end of the reporting period. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount of
revenue to recognise in a given period. The stage
of completion is measured by reference to work
performed to date as a percentage of total contract
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.13

214

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturity of three months or less, and bank
overdraft. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EABTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Provisions 217 #E

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EABTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition 2.19 WAFER

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria
have been met. Revenue is shown net of sales tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the contracts
as detailed in note 2.11 above.

Rental income from leasing of machinery and
equipment is recognised based on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired receivable is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(®)

()

Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessors) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will
then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

(a) Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the Company’s functional currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$ and Macao Patacas
(“MOP”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$ and
MOP, and there are no significant assets
and liabilities denominated in other
currencies. Management considered that
the foreign exchange risk for MOP is
minimal since exchange rate fluctuation
was minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

(®)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate
risk as borrowings are carried at variable
rates. It is the Group’s policy to maintain
its borrowings subject to floating rates,
and accordingly, the Group has not used
any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2015, if the interest
rates on borrowings had been 100
basis-points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would be HK$2,890,000
(2014: HK$2,811,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and cash equivalents, trade and
retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables, and amount due from a related
company. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, 100%
(2014: 99%) of the Group’s revenue was
derived from its top five customers. As at 31
March 2015, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 100% (2014: 100%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s
two (2014: three) customers.

3 BXEREREE)

3.1 Bff%

(@)

(b)

=S EE - )

5 m 5 (&)
(i) A EEE R

AEBEREAFB
AR N DR = PR
AR KER AR
SE O BERZRE
H &R FH =X
AR ANAEE
i SRR RS L
AN EER

M2015%3 A31
B f\ & 5K & F
%+, T #100
EE% mAA
Bt A BRF T
g AFERKRBE
= A A% 2 Bl
/1 f02,890,000
BT (2014 % :
2,811,0008 7T) -
TERRFEMER
HF BB
WA -

1= B/m bz

AEERERSMRATE
EY - B E 5508 MR
Be  He REMEER
TE K e s BR B 1 R SR IR
AZEERR - A s
EHEAEERBRAZE
TREEMNREIE -

HE2015F3H31H IEF
B AEEREAREFR
R N =N N )
100% (20144F : 99%) -
MR2015%F3H31H * AR
FEUE 5 IEH F100%
(20144 - 100%) 4 FE Ut
AEEME (20145 + =
B)BERFIA RS
EEEEETRAR -

—Z-HFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

79



30
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, management reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and retention receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment provision is made for the
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank and
amount due from a related company are
limited because deposits are in banks with
sound credit ratings and management does
not expect any loss from non-performance by
related companies.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number
of sources including orderly realisation of
short-term financial assets, receivables and
certain assets that the Group considers
appropriate and long term financing including
long-term borrowings are also considered
by the Group in its capital structuring. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances and interest
bearing borrowings which enable the Group
to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interests payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rates at the year end date). Where
the loan agreement contains a repayable on
demand clause which gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time,
the amounts repayable are classified in the
earliest time bracket in which the lender could
demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HXERERERE(Z)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBRABERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBELREE (&)
On demand
and Between Between More
less than 1and 2 2and5 than
1 year years years 5 years Total
RERR
PR-F -ZWE —ZLf BBAIF @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TAR THT TAT THAT
As at 31 March 2015 12015534318
Trade and retention payables ERE55ER
RkEe 36,936 - - - 3693
Accruals and other payables [EATFIE R
Hth R HE 16,023 - - - 16,028
Amount due to a director ER-—ZEZHA - - - 23725 2375
Long-term bank loans RHFETER 65545 27,912 44,614 - 138,071
Short-term bank loans BHETER 110,974 - - - 110,974
Obligations under finance HERERE
leases 34,631 30,869 25,299 - 90,799
As at 31 March 2014 12014534318
Trade and retention payables ERE55ER
RkEe 14,873 - - - 14878
Accruals and other payables [EAT AR
Hth R HE 21,793 - - - 21793
Bank overdraft RITEX 28,455 - - - 28455
Long-term bank loans RHBFTER 166,784 9,438 5210 - 181432
Short-term bank loans BHFTER 92,923 - - - 92,923
Obligations under finance HEHERE
leases 25,361 11,347 13,273 - 49,981
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce borrowings. The Group monitors capital
on the basis of gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
obligations under finance lease and bank overdraft)
less cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposit and restricted bank balances pledged
for security of a revolving loan. The gearing ratio
decreases because of the Group’s profit improves
during the year. The gearing ratios were as follows:
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEEMTEE)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 BARBRERE(E)
As at 31 March
MN3HA31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FE T
Borrowings (including obligations & (B IEREHE & T
under finance leases and RR1TELZ) (KEzE21)
bank overdraft) (note 21) 325,933 336,682
Less: cash and cash equivalents, & : IR & &I & Z(8
short-term bank deposit RHRITER
and restricted bank ARBIER—ERIR
balances pledged for BEREA @Az
security of a revolving BRI SR 1T A4S £
loan (202,521) (95,637)
Net debt BEFHE 123,412 241,045
Total equity A EE 527,780 218,719
Gearing ratio EEBERLX 23% 110%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 RAFEME

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances, trade and retention
receivables, deposits and other receivables and
amount due from a related company, trade and
retention payables, other payables and borrowings
approximate their fair values, which either due to
their short-term maturities, or that they are subject
to floating rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy, the
industry practice, expected usage of the assets,
expected repair and maintenance, the technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Residual values
of the machinery and equipment are determined
based on prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets taking into account the condition of the
relevant assets and other economic considerations.
Depreciation expense would be significantly affected
by the useful lives and residual values of the plant
and equipment as estimated by management. If
the residual values of plant and equipment had
decreased by 10%, the depreciation expenses
would increase by HK$3,286,000 for the year ended
31 March 2015 (2014: HK$2,284,000).

e B HmRME

EEER AT RAE
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KFIREE

EREN2ERNEENEBE
X HEEBERER 17%X8
- BEERMAE BHEER

BTk 7 AR -
ETHEAR R R BRI RT E G AR o
T K 35 AE WO TR R (BB D IR IR
ARSRKREENRITMERE
EWERBEBREEMKRK
HEEEEREZ - E2EM
i 5T A B 5% 18 9 7] {8 R 48 A
REHEESETERREE
RN L o B R R0 F &
EERDP10%  BIRE E2015
FAGIBIEFEMNTEEH
1 1% 113,286,000/ Jt (2014
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

The Group’s major operating assets represent
machinery and equipment. Management performs
review for impairment of the plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of these assets
may not be recoverable.

Management considered there was no impairment
indicator of machinery and equipment during the
year as these assets were used for profitable
construction projects, and there is a strong demand
of these plant and equipment in the second hand
market.

Impairment of trade and retention receivables

Management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and retention receivables
based on the credit history of customers and the
current market condition by business segment.
Significant judgment is exercised on the assessment
of the collectability of receivables from each
customer. In making the judgment, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results
of follow-up procedures, customer payment trends
including subsequent payments and customers’
financial positions. If the financial conditions of
the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
The final outcome of the recoverability of these
receivables will impact the amount of impairment
required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time
to time provided by the major contractors, suppliers
or vendors involved and the experience of the
management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management conducts periodic
reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact
on the profit recognised in each period.

The Group recognised its contract revenue
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of the individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting period. The Group reviews and revised
the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each construction contract as the contract
in progress. Management regularly reviews the
progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

e B HmRME
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Macau. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax expense in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

Provision in respect of litigations and claims

The Group has been engaged in a number of
litigations and claims. Contingent liabilities arising
from these litigations and claims have been
assessed by management with reference to legal
advice. Provisions on the possible obligation, if
appropriate, are made based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. Provision for
litigation has been made as at 31 March 2015 and
2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
gross contract receipts on foundation works and ancillary
services in the ordinary course of business. Revenue
recognised is as follows:

Turnover e
Foundation works and
ancillary services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors regard the Group’s business as a single
operating segment and reviews financial information
accordingly.

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue from external customers
attributable to the countries in which the Group
derives revenue and information about its non-
current assets, excluding deferred income tax
assets, based on both (i) the country of domicile
of companies holding these assets and (ii) their
physical location are detailed below:

o B T A2 o B 8 AR 7%

e B HmRME

WA EBER

WAEEBRFEHERTHET
T2 N Mt B AR S B9 4B & KUK - 7R
BARENEEE - BHOBA
LN

Year ended 31 March

HE3ASIBLEFE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
851,285 492,734

ARARIMATESREER/EEE
BERRA -BTEFHAKEN
XGENDRE—REDE  XLAHE
EMMBEER -

pa g

@ SHBEH
AEERENBES KA L E
REEFDEE (FREEE
FEREE) PEANSERE
& e iy 22 7 5T AR AE B R R ()
SEAENER AL E N E
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e PR ERR M

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@) Segment information (Continued)

Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong N
Macau B P

Non-current assets (excluding deferred income tax
assets)

(i) Based on country of domicile of companies
holding the assets:

Hong Kong BB

The machinery and equipment of the
Group were owned by Sam Woo Bore Pile
Foundation Limited and Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited, the country of domicile of
both is Hong Kong.
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(@) DELER(E)
KEINEEF BIHA

Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31AILLEE

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
446,417 37,335
404,868 455,399
851,285 492,734

HRBEE (T ERELH
FHEE)

() REHERSEED
AR AERR

As at 31 March

R3A31R
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT FTAT
513,156 400,200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@) Segment information (Continued)

Non-current assets (excluding deferred income tax
assets) (Continued)

(i)  Based on physical location of the assets:

Hong Kong BB
Macau JEFT

(b)  Revenue derived from major customers:

There were four (2014: one) customers which
individually contributed over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015.
The revenue from each of these customers
amounted to HK$317,755,000, HK$250,307,000,
HK$144,853,000 and HK$86,143,000, respectively,
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$434,581,000).

5

e B RRME

WARDBER (F)

D EREFL (&)

HnBEE (T EFELAT
HWEE) (&)

(i) REZFEENERMRE

E :
HA3H31H

As at 31 March
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FA T
313,754 217,309
199,402 182,891
513,156 400,200

REETERFHIKA

H E2015F3A31H IEF
B (20145 —R) &
FPARAEEMNKAERER
10% - REZSEEFPEEN
W ARE £20159F3 8318
IEFE 5 Bl #E317,755,000
T 250,307,000
JC ~ 144,853,000/ 7t &
86,143,000/ 7t (20144 :
434,581,000/ 7T) °
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6 OTHER INCOME AND GAIN, NET

Machinery and equipment
leasing income

Gain on disposal of plant
and equipment

Write-off of plant and equipment

Write-off of trade and retention
payables

Recovery from insurance claim

Others
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales

Construction contracts costs
(note (a))

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— leased plant and equipment

Repair and maintenance

Others

Administrative expenses
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (b))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
Operating lease rental in respect of
— office and storage premises
— directors’ quarters (note 28(a))
Professional fees

— incurred for initial public offering

— others

Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges
Others

Total cost of sales and
administrative expenses

7 BUEEEINRAX

Year ended 31 March

B Z3A31ALEE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FHTT
$H & A
S (M @)
519,829 311,181
e
— B E M &R 10,787 7,236
—TH S K R 3,798 2,519
HERRE 1,897 322
HAh 8,729 5,842
545,040 327,100
THRAX
BIXA(BEESHE)
(Bt 5% (o)) 13,492 11,639
Z 2R B & 1,518 750
e
—BEHMRRE 651 666
NTEEMNLEEHERS
—WREREEWE 3,889 3,299
—EEEE (M:E28(a) 2,167 2,167
EXEH
—MERARABEEL 11,662 1,528
—H At 11,665 3,049
AERAY 2,058 1,171
RITHAX 1,041 579
A 7,219 4,599
55,362 29,447
SHEMN A RITHRFA S 2%
600,402 356,547
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Construction contract costs included but are not limited
to costs of construction materials, staff costs (refer to
note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts and consumables,
subcontracting charges and transportation.

7

Wages and salaries TERSS
Pension costs — defined BRREKA—EREMENETE
contribution plans (note) (B 5E)
Employment benefits EEREH
Less: amount included in W BT ARES DB
construction contracts ERIEENEEE

costs or capitalised in
work-in-progress

Note:

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong
Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ gross earnings with a
ceiling of HK$1,250 per month up to 31 May 2014, and
HK$1,500 per month from 1 June 2014 onwards to the
MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in an employee social security
plan (the “Social Security Plan”) and contributes a fixed
amount for each employee as required by the regulations
in Macau.
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Year ended 31 March

BZ3A3BLLEE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
179,864 116,572
1,918 1,471
2,539 1,410
184,321 119,453
(170,829) (107,814)
13,492 11,639
HieF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

(Continued)

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme and the Social Security Plan is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in future year.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include three directors (2014: three)
whose emoluments were reflected in the analysis
presented in note 28(a). The emoluments paid to the
remaining two individuals (2014: two) are as follows:

Salaries, other allowances
and benefits in kind

Bonus TE4T

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

e B RRME

7 BRMEIHINRX(E)

Hiaz - (&)

(0)

TE&  HtREEREWREN

R RN — R KA B

(%)

AEERBRESE S TG RE
AEMME—-EERREBEE B
TR AR E MR - B gt
ARERDARREERNHR -

hE&EHAL

HE2015%F3A31H IEEE * &
SRR EEEHFATSRIBRIE=
H(2014F =R ES ' BER
B & A FE28(@) M D TR 251 ©
REEBME (20145F : ME) AL
MBS WT

Year ended 31 March
BZE3AMHALEE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTHERT TETT
3,168 8,19
491 293

118 101
3,777 3,593
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e PR ERR M

7  EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 RMEEIINEX(E)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat - (&)
(c)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) ) HEEZEHFALT(#E)
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the ZEATHMEN FTLATEE

following bands:

Number of individuals
Year ended 31 March

AE
B E3HSIHLEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTERT FH&T
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,000% 7T 1 1
2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the 7R £ B 48% 4 A {F {r] Z= S B
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an AEZEEH AT X FEM
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B £ 1 & 0 A ZN £ B sk 0
compensation for the loss of office. AN £2 [ B 1 58 B o B

fH{E
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e B RRME

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 8 HMBBRARKAE

Year ended 31 March

BZ3AMBLEE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FA T
Finance income BRI
— Interest income on bank deposits ~ — R 1717 Z &I K 2 UL A 1,277 583
1,277 583
Finance costs B 7% & A
— Interest expense on bank loans —IRITERF ERAX (10,661) (7,666)
— Interest expense on obligations —REHEEENFERXZ
under finance leases (3,397) (1,782)
— Interest expense on bank —RITBEZNFERAXZ
overdrafts (184) (294)
— Interest expense on amount — RN —RBEEFRIBEHNFE
due to a director (note 25(b)) 732 (Ff5E25(0)) (125) =
(14,367) 9,742)
Finance costs, net WBEBER 558 (13,090) (9,159)
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9

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Hong Kong profits tax BEFEH
Current income tax BEAFT 15 %X
Over-provision in prior year EFBEEE

Deferred income tax (note 18) EIEFTIS R (FIzE18)

Macau profits tax RFIFTIS R
Current income tax Bl ER P 5 5t

Hong Kong profits tax and Macau complementary tax
have been provided at the rate of 16.5% and 12%,
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: same).
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FREBAX
RiEFEE2HABERIENABETE
#E

Year ended 31 March
HZE3ASIBLLEE

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET TFHET
3,347 23

- (20)

13,341 (263)
5,154 3,069
21,842 2,809

B E20155F3HA3IHILEFE 25
AT EARTUR N 2 512 16.5% K2 12%
MR RBENESHREORM S M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax
rate of Hong Kong as follows:

e B RRME

FrEsimx (&)

74 g B 04 B 49 1 B 2 L 0 B
RAEARKIENERBENER
m -

B2 3R

<

Year ended 31 March

HE3ASIBLEE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FHETT
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B B Al 241,010 129,895
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% R16.5%H B X H R IR 39,767 21,433
Tax effects of: UTEBENTETE
Tax rates of overseas operation 8 I FETS B TR R (1,933) (1,026)
Income not subject to tax BAFRBRA (21,107) (22,623)
Expenses not deductible for DA A
tax purposes 5,086 4,975
Utilisation of previously BABRTREROMIEEE
unrecognised tax losses - (11)
Tax losses for which no deferred I & T SRR SE TS B & B
income tax asset was recognised EOR TRy =] 29 90
Overprovision in prior year BAEFEBREEE - (20)
Tax concessions TIER % - )
Income tax expense PS5 Fi 2 21,842 2,809

—Z—REFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

929



100

10 DIVIDENDS

10 KR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEE

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FE T
Final dividends declared and paid REHAAANEE—MH
by a subsidiary of the Group WERAREIREEMNA
prior to the Reorganisation RAEARR B (Pt 7E(a))
(note (a)) 50,000 50,000
Proposed final dividend of BEAHREER T AR
HK15 cents (2014: Nil) 15811l (20144 : 4)
per ordinary share (note (b)) (Pt 5% (b)) 60,000 =
110,000 50,000
Notes: V oz
(@)  Final dividends of HK$50,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 (@ =F(BV)H BIR2013%E8A K&

were declared and paid by SW (BVI) to the then
shareholders in August 2013 and September 2014,

respectively.

(b) A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 (b)
of HK15 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of HK$60,000,000, will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These consolidated financial

statements do not reflect such dividend payable.
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e B HmRME

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BRER
(a) Basic (@ EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing FRRE AR F TR E RN 7 #
the profit attributable to equity holders of the w5 B A FE{h m FIBR LA AR B
Company by the weighted average number of BB 31T T AR ke 19 EiGt
ordinary shares in issue during the respective years. o ARETE L AR IR
The weighted average number of ordinary shares HEE 52014F9H15H K
used for such purpose has been retrospectively M E4 K2014F10H16H B
adjusted for the effects of the issue of shares in TR E R EEITMEBEITRR D
connection with the Reorganisation completed on R e B PAE -
15 September 2014 and the Capitalisation Issue of
the ordinary shares which took place on 16 October
2014.
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEE
2015 2014
Profit attributable to equity KR EIERIEA AL S F
holders of the Company (F%&T)
(HK$’ 000) 219,168 127,086
Weighted average number of & R E KRBT
ordinary shares for the TR T E (TR)
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share
(thousands) 345,753 300,000
Basic earnings per share BREARRF (L)
(HK cents) 63.39 42.36
(b) Diluted (o) #B5%
Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount SRS ERANNEGSRERNRZF
as the basic earnings per share as there were no FEE - Ty AR R E R k1T
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at the B EEEEL B -
year end.
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12 SUBSIDIARIES 12 HIBAH
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AT & R2015F3H31H /) = Z K
March 2015: BATZE:
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest Principal activities and

Name incorporation share capital held as at place of operation

a8 ML ERTRBZRA FEERER TEERREEHEY

2015 2014

Directly held by the Company:

HARREHRE !
Sam Woo Group Limited British Virgin Islands  US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sam Woo Group Limited RBRUHES 10,000% T 100% 100% ®EZR

Indirectly held by the Company:

HAAREERS !
Sam Woo Bore Pile Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and
Foundation Limited ancillary services in
Hong Kong
= ERR AR 0 10,000,000/ 7 100% 100% REBETHEIRR
HR 4t R AR S
Sam Woo Construction & Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Trading of and leasing of
Engineering Limited machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong
“MEREHAR DA Bk 100,000/ 7T 100% 100% REFEERBERMRR
Sam Woo Engineering Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% 100%  Leasing of machinery and
Equipment Limited equipment in Hong Kong
=MERBRRA Bk 500,000% 7 100% 100% REBBERMRR
Sam Woo Foundation Macau MOP30,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and
Limited ancillary services in Macau
SAM WOO E B R A 7] i dnl JEFT%#530,000 100% 100% REMETHEIRR
SR A B AR
Sam Woo Construction Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
Limited services in Hong Kong
—MBERRRT BA 10,000/ 7T 100% 100% REBETHEIRR
RO B AR
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e B HmRME

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2015: (Continued)

Name

2R

Sam Woo Civil Contractors
Limited
“MEARIRERAA

Sam Woo GCivil Works Limited
ZAEIARBERAF

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

“HHETRBRAA

Sam Woo Finance Limited

=NHBERAA

Sam Woo Offshore
Engineering Limited
SHEFIRERAR

SW AA Construction Group
Limited (formerly known
as “Sam Woo Construction
Group Limited”)
SMENEEEERR R
(RIE[=NREEE
BRAF]

Sam Woo Foundation
Group Limited
“HEEEERAA

Redland Contractors Limited

PREERRAA

Place of
incorporation
A3
Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

&b

Hong Kong

&g

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BR

Hong Kong

'R

Issued and

fully paid

share capital
BRTRAZRE

HK$10,000

10,000 7T

HK$2
2B

HK$2

2B

HKS2

28T

HK$1

HKS$1

18T

HKS$1

18T

HK$2

2B

Effective interest

held as at

fERER

2015

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2014

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

A E (&)

AR & 201593 A318 &) £ Z it
BRARRZE: (&)

Principal activities and
place of operation
TEXBREELY

Inactive

LEXE

Inactive

EEXH

Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong
REBETHETIRR
R HL I B AR

Provision of financial services

to group companies
MEEARRESBRE
Inactive

BEXH

Inactive

EEXH

Inactive

TEXH

Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong
REBETHEIRR
TR AL I B R

—Z-HFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 31 March 2013 #2013F3A31H
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation 2HIE
Net book amount EHFE
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE2014F3ANBLLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE
Additions NE
Write-off 58
Depreciation neE
Closing net book amount FREBHE
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A831H
Cost XA
Accumulated depreciation 2itHE
Net book amount REHE
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE2015F3A31BLEFE
Opening net book amount FOREHE
Additions NG
Transfer to contracting BREERANIRE
work-in-progress
Write-off |
Disposals e
Depreciation neE
Closing net book amount FRERFE
At 31 March 2015 M201563A31R
Cost PR A
Accumulated depreciation e
Net book amount REFE

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

13 HHMKEEHE
Machinery  Furniture
and and Motor
equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BHRRE GRAREE RE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET
450,194 1,412 6,296 457,902
(136,769 (1,262) (6,094)  (143,125)
313,425 150 1,202 314,777
313,425 150 1,202 314,777
95,241 357 25 95,623
(1,147) - - (1,147
(9,755) (105) (561) (10,421)
397,764 402 666 398,832
539,674 1,656 6,181 547,511
(141,910) (1,254) (5,515) (148,679
397,764 402 666 398,832
397,764 402 666 398,832
127,369 158 2,412 129,939
(3,274) - - (3,274)
(266) (1) )] (274)
(717) (6) (19) (742)
(14,269) (131) (836) (15,236)
506,607 422 2,216 509,245
661,409 1,629 8,409 671,447
(154,802) (1,207) (6,193)  (162,202)
506,607 422 2,216 509,245




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 HBRMRZE(E)
(@) The net book amount of plant and equipment held @@ RERERESTFHENER
under finance lease obligations comprise: KR ENREFESTE

As at 31 March

M3H31H

2015 2014

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET FA&TT

Cost — Capitalised finance KA-BERFTEANBRERE

leases 157,946 120,429

Accumulated depreciation A2t E (7,005) (6,296)

Net book amount R FE 150,941 114,133
(b)  Asat 31 March 2015, plant and equipment amounting (o) M2015%3H31H 28 A
to HK$107,599,000 (2014: HK$99,145,000) were 107,599,000/% 7t (20144 :
secured for the Group’s bank loans (note 21(g)(ii)). 99,145,000/ 7T) K 1 i & 5%

HERIEAEERTTE KA
(Bt 5E21(g)(ii)) °

() As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s finance leases (c) M201543H31H r A&
are secured by certain plant and equipment with MR EHENDUNEARER
carrying amounts of HK$150,941,000 (2014: 150,941,000/ 7T (20144 :
HK$114,133,000) (note 21(f)). 114,133,000/ 7T ) #) & T # 4k

REEEA (HE21() -
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e PR ERR M

14 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Retention receivables

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables (note)
Less: non-current portion

Current portion

FEWE 5 A
FEU R E &

RKWE ZFRIARRE S
Bre  BAFER

H 8 YR IE (BT RE)
B SEBN B

ENEAEE >

Note: The balance mainly represents receivables for leasing of

machinery and equipment, bond deposit for construction
projects, rental deposit, prepayment for plant and
equipment and other miscellaneous prepayments.

The credit period granted to trade customers other than

for retention receivables was within 45 days. The terms

and conditions in relation to the release of retention
vary from contract to contract, which may be subject
to practical completion, the expiry of the defect liability

period or a pre-agreed time period. The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.
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14 BRESHRERRES URE

& RAREREAEWKE

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
127,835 27,799
74,532 50,787
202,367 78,586
7,219 4,483
(3,911) (1,368)
3,308 3,115

Wit : ZAEH T B RRWAE R R R
B EREAEBNBEORES
MERE  BRRRENEANK
THIA R B A TR TR SRR o

BREERZE I BHEPERLS
RARBEER - REFRE S 8K
REGEEEREEAOMAMTR -
ARRAGERKRT - RiEE EHHK
TR AER HREEMETT S REE
AREBEY EFEEAETRIESE
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

14 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,

AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days 1£230H

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention receivables
were classified as current assets. The ageing of the
retention receivables based on invoice date was as

follows:
Within 1 year —&R
Between 1 and 5 years —ZE ks

As at 31 March 2015, there were no trade and retention
receivables which were past due (2014: none).

14

ERESREARRES  UARE
& BARERAEtERRE (&)

RS ZRERBEZBHELD

RRERDATEAT ¢

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FE T
127,835 27,799

REEEERBERA  BRAEE
DERRBEE - BRERESRIE
LEEHMERERIT

N

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx FE T
51,413 34,442
23,119 16,345
74,532 50,787

201543 H31H » I & 2 & H 1Y
EWE HRBARRE S (201445 -

') -

—ZE-hFFHR ‘ ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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e PR ERR M

14 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 14 BREZRERREES UARE
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER € - BREREMERE(Z)
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables KRB SFIERRE R ER
approximated their fair values and were denominated in HEAFERSE - AT ESE

the following currencies:

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2015 2014

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FExT FETT

HK$ BT 111,196 27,026

MOP ki 91,171 51,560

202,367 78,586
As at 31 March 2015, there was no impairment in trade, M2015F3H31H ' [ERE 5 - &
retention or other receivables (2014: Nil). B ek E b UG IB I R E (2014

FE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Contract costs incurred plus
attributable profits less
foreseeable losses to date

Progress billings to date HEZBR#EE MR

Included in current assets/ AARBEE, (BFE)W
(liabilities) are the following: SEMAT

Due from customers for EUXEAEHTESE
contract work

Due to customers for BRNEFAEHIESHE

contract work

As at 31 March 2015, amounts due from customers
for contract work included a balance of HK$9,374,000
(2014: HK$9,374,000) not yet certified by a customer.
On 14 November 2013, a subsidiary of the Company
served a notice of arbitration to this customer to settle
the dispute on the final payment of the contract. The
arbitration is still in progress as at 31 March 2015. Taking
into consideration the advice from its legal representative,
the directors consider that the Group is fully entitled to
payment to cover at least the balance on book.

In connection with the listing of the Company on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a
deed of indemnity (the “Deed of Indemnity”) was signed
on 25 September 2014, pursuant to which Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, a director of the Company, irrecoverably and
unconditionally undertakes to pay up the entire sum or
the shortfall, if any, on demand by the Group if the Group
fails to recover such amount.

e B HmRME

15 HEREHNIRE

As at 31 March

BEZBAMELNA KA
JEAE % FRL AT 78 &5 18

A3HS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FB T FE T
318,273 118,807
(298,053) (99,326)
20,220 19,481
27,054 19,481
(6,834) =
20,220 19,481

MR2015F3A31H EWEF &4
TEcHEE " RBEPHAAKE
B 45 £29,374,00078 7T (20144 :
9,374,000/ 7T) ° 2013511 714
B ARQaMBRAARZERF %
M EBA - BILEAEES IR
IS AL S o (P& KR 2015F3
1R NIE#EITH - KERBEEER
EMER ZEFRALEEELE
BRSO BERMEMTEHD
3K o

R2014F9H25H AR AR H
BHMAERSHMAR AR ER ETWER
F—hRERE ((RERE]) &
bt - ANQEE SRR L A DA
B R B i ARE - fim AN & B R BE X
EEBARE FHERAEEZRE
BMYNE@EemE =8 (0E) °
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e PR ERR M

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cast at bank RITIRE

Cash on hand FHES

Less: restricted bank balances (note) & : R $l45 1745 &4 (PfF#E)
Less: short-term bank deposit W R ERIRTT I K

Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEED
Maximum exposure to credit risk FiEENREEE

Note:

As at 31 March 2015, restricted bank balances consisted of (a)
deposit of HK$17,456,000 to secure a performance bond; (b)
deposit of HK$17,460,000 to secure a revolving loan; and (c) a
deposit of HK$20,125,000 placed by a director (note 20).

As at 31 March 2014, restricted bank balances consisted of (a)
deposit of HK$9,300,000 for a bank to issue a letter of credit to
a supplier for the purchase of plant and equipment; (b) deposit of
HK$17,138,000 to secure a performance bond; and (c) deposit
of HK$9,700,000 to secure a revolving loan.

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

S

16

RERBASEEY

As at 31 March

M3H31R

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET THET
240,039 122,004
63 71
(55,041) (36,138)
(8,000) -
177,061 85,937
240,039 122,004

201563 A31H + X R #ll R 17 4 &
1 ¥E(a)%17,456,00078 TT ¥ 1R B 4917
F 4% (b)4917,460,0007 T L ER1G —
EB/EBEERMELOFR KA
20,125,000 ;tHH — R E ST ANIE
& (fF3E20) °

R20145E3A31H @ R HIR 1748
B $E(2)#99,300,0007% 7T F #R 77 [A] fE /&
7 B A5 A AR LA RS B i SR 3% 1E ¢ (b)
#917,138,0008 THERBAREZ L
K (c)%79,700,000/8 ST SLEV S —E B3R
BERATEEER °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the
purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdraft (note 21)

BENMNBEELEEY
RITE X (MizE21)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and short-term bank deposit
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
MOP
United States dollars (“US$”)

BT
R P
EYIE )

16

e B RRME

REeERREEEDW (&)

IARARERERME - B KR
TEFEYERATEE :

As at 31 March

M3H31R
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
177,061 85,937
- (28,455)
177,061 57,482

RekBReEEY XRBREIEFTHE
FRA KB BRI R R E(E A T
Sl ETE

As at 31 March

MN3A31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx THET
188,610 87,901
51,469 34,151
23 23
240,102 122,075

—Z-HFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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e PR ERR M

17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES

(@)  Share capital

On 17 September 2012, the Company was
incorporated with an authorised share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each. On the same day, one
subscriber share was allotted and issued nil-paid.
The subscriber share was subsequently transferred
to Actiease Assets. Shares issued pursuant to the
Reorganisation were as follows:

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

17 BRE - ROBERHE

(L&

MR2012F9A17H * AR A&
il BX 32 - % FE AR 72X /380,000
B IT 9 A38,000,000% & %
EEC.O1E TG - BB -
— IR R AR5 LA R SR R
NEL B KRBT - REARMDE
1% 8 3E T Actiease Assets ° 1B
BEHEBITRONAT

As at 31 March 2015

As at 31 March 2014

2015537318 2014F3 7318
Nominal Nominal
Number of value  Number of value
shares HK$ shares HK$
kEfE REE
gz G| B S BT
Authorised (ordinary shares of EE(BRO01ETZ
HK$0.01 each): EER):
At 1 April R4A18 38,000,000 380,000 38,000,000 380,000
Increase in authorised share capital AT RA 962,000,000 9,620,000 - -
At 31 March "3A31E 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 = 38,000,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid (ordinary BRETRER (510.01
shares of HK$0.01 each): BLTZEER)
At 1 Apri #4A18 1 - 1 .
Shares issued pursuant to the REEASETRG
Reorganisation (note 1.2) (W3E1.2) 999 10 = =
Share issued pursuant to the REERCETEETRG
Capitalisation Issue (note 1.2) (HizE1.2) 299,999,000 2,999,990 - -
Share issued under the Share Offer BERAEECHTRE 100,000,000 1,000,000 - =
At 31 March M3A31H 400,000,000 4,000,000 1 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES (Continued)

17 BRAE - ROBERHE(E)

(b)  Share premium and reserves ) &
Share Other Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
RDEE  HitREE REEA Agt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TAT FAET TET FTHT
(note)
(Bt =%)
At 31 March 2013 R2013F4 1R - 10,500 131,133 141,633
Profit for the year AEE & - - 127,086 127,086
Dividends relating IHTERERREHE
to the year ended HZE2013F3A31H8
31 March 2013 EFEHRE
paid to the then
shareholders - - (50,000) (50,000)
At 31 March 2014 201463 A31H - 10,500 208,219 218,719
Profit for the year REE 5 A - - 219,168 219,168
Share issued pursuant to BIEE R ET
the Capitalisation Issue B #7h G
(note 1.2) (Pt3E1.2) (3,000) - - (3,000)
Share issued under the BERGOEEBETRG
Share Offer (note 1.2) (BgsE1.2) 149,000 - - 149,000
Share issuance costs R B ATRAR (10,107) - - (10,107)
Dividends relating IHTERBREEBEE
to the year ended 20143 A31HIEEE
31 March 2014 B R 2
paid to the then
shareholders - - (50,000) (50,000)
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31H 135,893 10,500 377,387 523,780
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e PR ERR M

17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Share premium and reserves (Continued)

Note: Other reserves of the Group represented the

difference between the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation
over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof and the
difference between the aggregation of the nominal
value of the share capital of Sam Woo Bore Pile
Foundation Limited and Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited acquired over the nominal value
of the share capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to the reorganisation completed in
20083.

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities were as follows:

17 BRA& - RIOOBERREE (F)

b) f#HE

HieE : AEEREAMREEERE
SAFTRERH B AR
AR R BRI A R AR
FTE 1T AR R A EE K
=78 LA RAR % 742003
ERKHNEBEREMKREN=
Fith E G PR A 7] 8 = A%
WA R AR R AR AN E E 8
M mRBREE R
MmETTH = F BV A HE
EREE -

18 EEMREH

ERERIAE EMERERBBED T
LI

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET Tt
Deferred income tax asset: FEEBHEE
Recoverable after more than R121E A & U =
12 months 209 8,817
Recoverable within 12 months 1218 A Rk = 24 85
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEEMGHRAE :
Payable or to be settled more R12(8 B BB &EE
than 12 months (41,818) (31,846)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEMSHRAE—F8 (41,585) (28,244)
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement on the deferred income tax account was
as follows:

At beginning of the year REF )

Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive (P 5E9)
income (note 9)
At end of the year RER

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities and
assets, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities — Accelerated tax
depreciation

e B RRME

18 EEFTEBH (&)

EEFTEHERBZESWT

As at 31 March

Rire 2mkER AR

M3H31R
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FH&T
(28,244) (28,507)
(13,341) 263
(41,585) (28,244)

BEFEHAEREEZD (TER
Al —H B RVEERANEESER) 20
T~

BRIEFMEHREE-NERRIBAFE

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2015 2014

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET FHT

At beginning of the year REH 54,905 42 321
Recognised in the consolidated RirE 2 HER = R A ER

statement of comprehensive income 13,295 12,584

At end of the year RER 68,200 54,905
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets — Tax losses

At beginning of the year

Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income

At end of the year

REA]
RiRE 2mkER AR
RER

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when

there is a legally enforceable right to set off current

income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
tax jurisdiction. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet.

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A
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e PR ERR M

18 EEFEBH (&)

EEFEREE-—RBABRE

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
26,661 13,814
(46) 12,847
26,615 26,661

EEFBHREEMRABRA AKX
oR AT RN K BN AT S I B A
BHmERABYHE BREERE
BERF — R H R AR R AR T A
B - REERBRTHIINEE
(RELEEHIHEREE) AT

As at 31 March

MN3A31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TAET
(41,818) (31,846)
233 3,602
(41,585) (28,244)




18

19

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18
Deferred income tax assets — Tax losses (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$1,960,000 (2014:
HK$2,104,000) that can be carried forward to offset
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no
expiry date.

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS 19
AND OTHER PAYABLES

e B RRME

EEFTSH (E)
EREFTEHEE-—HAEIR (&)

¥ 75 8 B 7 745 1| 2 1] 428 38 oK K FE AR
Tiom A IR - RIABEATAE S AR IE
EIEBERELERESHEE - R2015
F3A31H  AEEMRERRRIE
E518 5 B 49 £1,960,0007% 7T (2014
F:2,104,00087L) * ZEL A
ERERERRERBIRA - ZF
FRIEEEYESHA -

BNESZREARRES - BT RKE
K H fth FE A4 FRR

As at 31 March

MN3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T
Trade payables 8 5 3KI8 35,637 14,534
Retention payables EBRREB < 1,299 339
Total trade and retention payables EBNESHREBERRE BT 36,936 14,873
Accruals and other payables (note) &5t 28 & H h J& ~ 208 (K &) 16,586 22,284
53,522 S 187

Note: The amounts mainly represent advance from a customer,
and accruals and other payables for wages, legal and
professional fees and transportation costs.

Bt ZEFRITERBE—BEP
MBERARRIE EERZE
XERRERHNKANEE A
Ko Bl B A BRIR o
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e PR ERR M

19 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS 19 EFNEZRERREBS - EFH
AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) FEMENRE(E)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on

BN ESFEREEE A HNRE

invoice date was as follows: DT
As at 31 March
ASHS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FHET
0 to 30 days 0%£30H 25,586 13,275
31 to 60 days 31260H 5,142 641
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,823 -
91 to 180 days 912180H 3,032 10
181 to 365 days 181£365H 54 196
More than 365 days HiE365H - 412
35,637 14,534
In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables REEEEBBRNA - ENIRE
were classified as current liabilities. The ageing of the DEARDEE BHREESH ﬁn‘?
retention payables was as follows: BRI :
As at 31 March
MN3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T
Within 1 year —F A 1,291 331
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF 6 8
Over 5 years B i@ 2 =
1,299 339
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TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS
AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP R
Euro B T
Singapore dollars AN T

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
a director of the Company, irrevocably undertakes to
deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for purpose in respect of
any claims, challenges and rejections from the Hong
Kong tax authority and/or Macau tax authority and costs
incurred.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong Kong
taxation authority against the Group within seven years
after the date on which dealings in the shares on the
Main Board first commenced, i.e. 16 October 2014 (“the
Listing Date”), the balance shall be released and returned
to Mr. Lau Chun Ming on the seventh anniversary of the
Listing Date.

The balance, together with all bank interest accrued
therefrom, shall not be released and returned to the
director until and after all claims, if any, related to the
above have been concluded and fully settled and/or time-
barred in both Hong Kong and Macau.

19

20

e B HmRME

BNEZHEARRES - BIFHKER
R H A RROR (42)

B R 5 5OE R R B S ) B A B
BENDTEES  BATIHES
A

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FB T FE T
26,670 13,445
7,409 603
372 213
2,485 612
36,936 14,873

BN—-—REERE

REBERE ARARESIKRA
FE AN A E AR - B A B RS B
PI %k R P9 B % BB P9 69 4E fa] R
R HALRKE  ARMEENK
K-RAAEEEZTRITEFFEAR
720,000,000/ 7T °

WA ERAEREREEZB
(EN20145%10A8168 ([ EHEH]))
BEFER - BFABRBBFARESH
BRI ESAEEREBEBHRE
MER: AHRELENETABE L
BFEEBHEMMEETRRBLE

HREERE B RITHER
EEMBRARALEMEBER(WH)R
BEERRMAE TR RTEMBER,
B AR RRIR - T R RR
BTE=-
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e PR ERR M

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21 RITEXIRERK

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FHT
Non-current FETED
Obligations under finance leases BEMERME 54,038 23,656
Long-term bank loans RHRITER 68,472 14,150
122,510 37,806
Current mE
Bank overdraft RITEX - 28,455
Short-term bank loans RESRITER 110,974 92,556
Current portion of long-term R—FAEHEEDN
bank loans due for repayment RERITTE R
within one year BN ER&f 5 43,111 44,023
Long-term bank loans due after & A 7] BE Ry 2SR B & R
one year which contain R—FREHEEN
repayment on demand clause RHERITER 17,455 110,104
Obligations under finance leases R—F A HEED
due for repayment within one year MEREST 31,883 15,354
Obligations under finance leases A AT BE R E K (E R RN
due after one year which contain R—FREIHEEN
repayment on demand clause BMEREST - 8,384
203,423 298,876
Total borrowings &R ABEE 325,933 336,682
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e B RRME

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21
(Continued)

(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(1)

Bank overdraft and bank loans

In the consolidated balance sheet, bank
loans due for repayment after one year which
contain repayment on demand clause were
classified as current liabilities.

Based on the scheduled repayment terms set
out in the loan agreements and ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clause,
the maturity of bank overdraft and bank loans
would be as follows:

Bank overdraft on demand RJBER ESREEHNRITHE X

Within 1 year —F A
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF

RITEXIRER(E)

@ fEF

KE) B BRI

()

RITEX RRITEN

REERBEERBRA  #
B AT B By 2SR E R RN
—FRIMERNRITE
ROBERRBEIME -

RIBE & PAE A TEE
BN ARDE R
AIBERY B SRIEE R E
& RITEXRRITER
MEIEE R T

As at 31 March
MA3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET THET

- 28,455
154,085 136,579
38,651 42,283
47,276 &3l

240,012 289,288
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e PR ERR M

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows
(Continued):

(i) Obligations under finance leases

In the consolidated balance sheet, obligations
under finance lease due for repayment after
one year which contain repayment on demand
clause were classified as current liabilities.

Based on the scheduled repayment terms
set out in the finance lease agreements and
ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause, the maturity of obligations
under finance lease would be as follows:

Within 1 year —&R
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 5 years —EHG

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

21

RITEXRMER(E)
(@) EXOIEHBEROT : (&)

(i)

BEMER T

REEREERER  #F
] [ i 22 SRAZE IR —

FRIPEENRERE

EENEARIBDAR-

*ETFﬂﬁTﬂfTﬁz’J ZH |2
FIERE - LR ZER
Eﬁ—”@fﬁ%gj: EEIER
VRE RMEHEREN
FHERAT -

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FER THET
31,883 15,354
29,318 15,308
24,720 16,732
85,921 47,394




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(b)

The weighted average interest rates were as follows:

Short-term bank loans
Long-term bank loans

%Eﬁﬂfﬂ’_%t?ﬁ
RERITER

Obligations under finance leases rzaﬁléffﬂ‘ﬁzfg_

Bank overdraft

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank overdraft
and borrowings were denominated in the following

currencies:

HK$
MOP

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant. The fair

RITEX

within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

values are

e B RRME

21 SRITEXIRMEBR(E)

R A R & s 5 F R a0
T
As at 31 March

MN3A31H

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER TAET
4.6% 5.0%
4.0% 2.9%
3.8% 3.1%
1.3% 1.4%

ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁi&%?ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁ

BEATIERS

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FBT FE T
267,733 277,585
58,200 59,097
325,933 336,682

HRMIRTEEN - AEEH
EREEERE QA FERSE

~NFEBRAFE

LEEHFNE
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e PR ERR M

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21 R|ITEZIRERE)
(Continued)
(e) The obligation under finance leases are as follows: ) MEMEFEEHINWOT :

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FHT
Gross finance leases EEE AR
— minimum lease payments —REHEERK
Within 1 year —F R 34,631 25,361
Between 1 and 2 years —ZEMF 30,869 11,347
Between 2 and 5 years —EARF 25,299 13,273
90,799 49,981
Future finance charges on REM B ERETBH
finance lease (4,878) (2,587)
Present value of obligations BERERERNIRE
under finance leases 85,921 47,394
() As at 31 March 2015, the finance leases are () HM2015F3H31H r@&EME
secured by certain plant and equipment with EUNETHERARE®EES
carrying amounts of HK$150,941,000 (2014: 150,941,000/% 7T (20144 :
HK$114,133,000) of certain subsidiaries and 114,133,000/ 7T ) Hy7a T #
guarantees provided by the Company. As at 31 FEEER R B AR AREMR
March 2014, unlimited personal guarantees were IR - P2014F3A31H @ B
given by directors which had been released and EERHENEREEAERE
replaced by guarantees of the Company during the ARBR - 0 70 #L =20159F3 A 31
year ended 31 March 2015. B IEFEAARR AR A ER

A -
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e B RRME

21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(99 The Group’s banking facilities are subject to annual

review and the utilised facilities are secured or

guaranteed by:

Secured
Unsecured

(i)

(i)

BiEH
e i

corporate guarantees jointly granted by certain
subsidiaries to the extent of HK$79,055,000
(2014: HK$73,130,000) as at 31 March 2015;

an unlimited guarantee given by certain
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
same);

certain plant and equipment of the Group as
detailed in note 13(a), (b) and (c);

an assignment of receivable over the proceeds
of a construction project as at 31 March 2015
(2014: same);

indemnities from subsidiaries for the issuance
of guarantees or performance bonds of the
Company as at 31 March 2015 (2014: same);

21 BITEXIREBERE)

(9

AEENRITEELBRERE

EESFHRETEN  BC

8 PR 15 B A T 5 0 {4

R

As at 31 March

R3A31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT TAET
216,217 196,174
109,716 140,508
325,933 336,682

(i

(i)

R2015F3H318 ' B&
THY B 5 R 2 PR B8
£79,055,000/8 7 (2014
& : 73,130,000/ 7T) HY
D AER

R201563A31H * A&
TH B A AR A R RE
1R (20144 : /A :

AEBZ2HETHEW &K
# (£ R M3E13(a) ~ (b) &
(@) ;

MR20158F3H31H » 5
T8 B A5 FUB M) B I 5008
(20144 : FHR]) ;

R2015F3A318 - i B
RNAIGRARBIFTH AR E
REBAVREB(EL HTE
1RE (20144 : ARA) :
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e PR ERR M

21

BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(90 The Group’s banking facilities are subject to annual
review and the utilised facilities are secured or

guaranteed by: (Continued)

(vi) fixed deposits amounting to HK$17,460,000
(2014:HK$9,700,000) for security of a

revolving loan as at 31 March 2015;

(vii) personal guarantees provided by directors as
at 31 March 2014 which had been released
and replaced by guarantees of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2015;

(vii) a guarantee granted by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to
the extent of HK$1,425,000 as at 31 March
2014 which had been released during the year

ended 31 March 2015;

(ix) an unlimited guarantee given by related parties
as at 31 March 2014 which had been released
during the year ended 31 March 2015;

(x) certain properties held by related parties as
at 31 March 2014 which had been released
during the year ended 31 March 2015; and

(xi) a deposit of not less than HK$30,422,000
executed by Mr. Lau Chun Ming as at 31
March 2014 which had been released during

the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group did not breach any financial bank
covenant during the year ended 31 March 2015

(2014: none).
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21

RITEXRMER(E)

(9)

AEENRITEESFHRE
TEH BC#BEEANUT
FTREE R ER - (&)

(vi)

(vii)

MR201543A31H « kB
—EREREFKFERN
17,460,000/ JT (2014
£ : 9,700,000/ 7T ) & E
Tk

MR2014%F3H31H ' AE
EIRMERNEAERER
B - W E E201543 A
S1HIEFEUARR AR
A ERIN

(viiiy A2014%F3H31H B &

(ix)

V8 BT IR BT P R it
PR &8 &1,425,0007%8 JT A9
ER HERB E2015
FIAZIA L FEER®
b s

MR2014F3H31H * @&
T RAH A TR LA R EE
R HEEREHZ=2015
F3A318 Ik F E & f#
B

R2014%3H31H + HE#
BEATHRBRE TYE
HEBEREZE2015%F3 A31
BIEFEERR : &

MR2014F3A31H * B
Bl X EMEET D
730,422,000/ JT ) 17
;K HEREE201543
A318 IEF EE/RERR -

AEBRE E2015F3831H
I\EFE I EE RIS RRTT
) (20144 : &) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

22 COMMITMENTS 22 RIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAHEIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the REEBBETAERKRESD
year but not yet incurred is as follows: BARBAZMT :
As at 31 March
MN3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Plant and equipment MR K 7R A 15,737 104,815
(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessee (b) KEHEAE—(EREMEA

The future aggregate minimum lease rental
expenses in respect of hiring equipment, office and
storage premises, and quarters for workers and
directors under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:
No later than 1 year TER—F
Later than 1 year and BN —F

no later than 5 years BNERAF

16 45T A 0 4 2 T 7L
2 BTRRAEMEUR
BIREEEE MK RRIER
SETEEANEHMEAY
fit o

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FBT FE T
5,048 3,264
5,010 917
10,058 4,181
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

22 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any
operating lease commitments as a lessor (2014: Nil).

23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has given guarantees
on performance bonds of HK$67,305,000 and
HK$29,200,000 (2014: HK$67,305,000), respectively,
in respect of two construction contracts (2014: one)
of the Group in its ordinary course of business. The
performance bonds are expected to be released in
accordance with the terms of the respective construction
contracts.
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22

23

AIE(E)
(c) weEHEAE—1EALEA

A2015%F3H31H » A&EE I
ELAHBA B O] B EALE
FREAIE (20145 &) -

HREE

R2015F3A31H - BEEAEE
I (20144 « —IH) H & T2 R [}
BARAIE B M E LR K IER D B4
67,305,000 7t 529,200,000/ 7T
(20144 : 67,305,000 7T ) Z 4b
AREBIEEMEMEASAE
B ZERANRHBIABRESE
EEHNHIERERRR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

cash generated from operations:

Profit before income tax
Depreciation of plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of plant
and equipment
Write-off of plant and equipment
Write-off of trade and
retention payables
Finance income
Finance costs

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in trade
and retention receivables

(Increase)/decrease in deposits,
prepayments and other
receivables

Increase in amounts due from
customers for contract
work

Decrease/(increase) in amount
due from a related company

Increase/(decrease) in trade
and retention payables

(Decrease)/increase in accruals
and other payables

Increase/(decrease) in amounts
due to customers for
contract work

Increase in amount due to a
director

Net cash generated from
operations

B P 15 75 51 st A
BN R R e

& R RS

i sH R N R

W H e & 5 R
RREE

B ESIA

MBER

FEWE 5 R IB R
REE (EmM),wWd
Be  BAFIER
H fth & UK IR
(&), md
EEEFANIRE
Gk bl

& U B Bk X R RR
mA ()

FERN & 5 RE &M
RE2E M O D)

& R R IR B L A FE A
KB ORD) /1200

ENEFAEHTE
SEEM O D)

B — 2 EEHIA

RETHMSHREFR

24

e PR

FEREREBRIE

2R

(a) BRETIS T B ) B2 48 & 275 A
BIRESFHRMNEER
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
241,010 129,895
15,236 10,421
(1,763) -
274 1,147
- (1,015)
(1,277) (583)
14,367 9,742
267,847 149,607
(123,781) 18,163
(1,742) 5,109
(4,299) (8,983)
386 (184)
22,063 (14,176)
(5,698) 807
6,834 (36,281)
20,000 -
181,610 114,062

—Z—REFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2015



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR M

24 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount (note 13)
Gain on disposal of plant

RRmEFE (M EE13)

and equipment (note 6) (Ff7E6)
Proceeds from sales of S M R SR Y
plant and equipment P18 5K 38

Non-cash transactions

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, (i)
finance lease arrangement was entered into
by the Group for acquisition of plant and
equipment amounting to HK$63,788,000; and
(i) plant and equipment of HK$3,274,000 was
reclassified to contracting work-in-progress
without any cash paid.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, (i)
finance lease arrangement was entered into
by the Group for acquisition of plant and
equipment amounting to HK$10,349,000; and
(i) inventories of HK$850,000 was reclassified
to contracting work-in-progress without any
cash paid.
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B W KRR AE

24

RERERERWER (&)

b) RExERESMERT  HEHK
W R R BN TS RIERIE

Year ended 31 March

HZE3ASIBLEFE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
742 =
1,763 —
2,505 =

) REeRH

(i)

(i

R E Z201543831H
EEE  (KAEEREE
63,788,000/ 7T A #
ERBITIUMEHER
B+ R(iii)3,274,00078 7T
R R R EEST RS
TEANIR  ERLE
S ERBES -

R & E20143831H
IEFE  ((NEEREE
10,349,000 7T H) # 4%
REEITVMERER
HE + R (i))850,00078 JT H9
GEENHIBRETEEEH
T2 BRIWESHEMR
R o



25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint
control. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.

25

e B HmRME

BBALRS

BAHE A LR BB HEH] - HKRIEH
ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁHWTﬁw&éﬁ
TEBOINALITEERZEND
AL AERESAZEEEZ2EER
B 77 # ] & (o] R e [ B SR R B A
T ATAAA SRR AL AENY
EREELHRSBENAL - AR
72 1| X B S I A £ TR RAR A R
BAL -FABALASEASEM

(a)

The directors of the Company are of the view that
the following companies were related parties that

had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

BEALTEE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
2R A&

Asian Giant Limited

Asian Giant Limited
Cheer Crown Limited

EHERALA
Cheer Profit International Enterprise Limited
ENEREEGR QA

Cheer Wealth International Development Limited

ERERERAR LA

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAGEER QA
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREBRATF

Long Ascent Development Limited

EAERBRAF

Redland Precast Concrete Products Limited

PEEEERLTEMmARAA

B

@ ARBEFRR G THRAR
B EARKEETTR 5 R ULE
BRESOBEBRAL

Relationship with the Group
HEASENER

Director of the Company

RARESE

A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group

HASKEE TEE2EHANHE AT

A related company beneficially wholly owned
by Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERALETEERHA N AR AR

A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group and their family
member

HAEBETESERARGKKEZEREEGN
EZp NG

A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group and their family
member

HAEBEETESTRARKKER
E2): /N

A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group and their family
member

HASBETESFRARGEXNELEREN
E2): /N

A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group

HASEETES 2 ERENAM AT

A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group

HASEETEE 2 ERENHAN AR

A related company wholly owned by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERALEE S EHEAN BB QA

BHREW
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e PR ERR M

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 25 BBALRES (&)
(b)  Transactions b) 25
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the B4R A B s sk E M3l BT
consolidated financial statements, the following WEEIN  NEEEER AL
transactions were carried out with related parties at REFHTEMETETATR
terms mutually agreed by both parties: 2

Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31BILLEE

2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FHET
Continuing transactions FFEX S
Paid to related parties: BB A T RIE
Rental expenses to Cheer XN TREBBERQAN
Crown Limited (note i) e s (K EED 2,040 1,800
Rental expenses to East Ascent S FERA B EGR QA
Enterprise Limited (note ii) & B = (Bt &) 46 46
Rental expenses to Cheer Profit 1~ F & FI| B BR 1> 3
International Enterprise Limited AR Q& #HHE &
(note ii) R 2 (BT i) 46 46
Rental expenses to Long Ascent it F KA ZEE AR A AH
Development Limited (note ii) T M X (KT &) 600 600
Rental expenses to Cheer S TFERBEEER
Wealth International BRARNES
Development Limited (note ii) s (B i) 875 875
Rental expenses to Healthy TRAREEREFRAA
World Investment Limited Eokizhcal i
(note ii) (B &) 600 600
Expense payable to BB ALRE :
a related party:
Interest expense payable BN —R2ESFE
to a director (note iii) A Sz (B =Eiii) 125 -
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e B HmRME

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 25 BEALRS (&)
(b) Transactions (Continued) by R5(#E)

Year ended 31 March

BZ3ASIALEE
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAIT
Discontinued transactions BAUR S
Received from related parties: © W@ A T\ :
Reimbursement of administrative 38 & 71 g B 28 5 +
expenses from Redland EmARAR®
Precast Concrete Products 1T R S 1B (BT aiv)
Limited (note iv) 58 148
Reimbursement of staff costs & B Asian Giant Limitedfy
from Asian Giant Limited 8 TR A& (fTaEiv)
(note iv) 484 2,010
Note i:  Rental expenses for storage of machinery and Biagi:  FRIETERER REE
equipment are based on terms pursuant to the WESAZTIERSE
tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the e ERBEMA
relevant parties. YRR
Note ji:  Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are B REEEEaNHES
based on terms pursuant to the tenancy AXTERBEBASH
agreements as mutually agreed by the relevant F 7 1% 7 &9 49 B9 1K
parties. Koo
Note jii:  Interest expense was payable to a director, Mr. Biatii 0 A BERZ THREEN—
Lau Chun Ming, in respect of the amount due to FEERIEMENE
a director (note 25(d)). = 24K B8 %k & (M 5
25(d)) °
Note iv: Reimbursements of staff costs and Kiagiv: B ITRARITEREX
administrative expenses were charged at cost. 178 {8 2 P A YO ER -

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and

non-executive) of the Group. The compensation

paid or payable to key management for employee
services is disclosed in note 28(a).

TEEEASHMH

IEEEANBBRAKRHES
(BT RIEBNTT) - SLEB R
ENKENTEIEEEAEDN
RN B TE28(a) B R -
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e PR ERR M

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 25 BBALRES (&)
(d) Balance - non-trade (d) ##r—3EEH

As at 31 March

MN3HA31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Asian Giant Limited (note) Asian Giant Limited (Ffi&E) - 386
Note: iz -
Receivable from the above related party was unsecured, JrE iz Lt A B A - O BRIE R A R
interest free and repayable on demand. 2B RABEHEERERE -
As at 31 March
A3H31H
2015 2014
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Payable to a director: Ef—REEHE .
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (note 20) 2 4x B8 5t £ (Kt =E20) 20,125 -
26 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 26 BRAERATE
Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings Limited, & 1% [8 R ASilver Bright Holdings
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is Limited (— fE 1A & 8 & & & & s fft
the ultimate holding company of the Group, which is a RN R]) BASEBREZERA
company indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the Al HAAREHLTAZHANS
beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So. EEEEEEES -
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e B HmRME

27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 27 AAFNEEEEBREHEERZE
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2015 2014
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Mo aE FET FAETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRAAIEE 5,927 =
Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEENE s 132 453
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 133,987 =
134,119 453
Total assets EEHAE 140,046 453
EQUITY =
Capital and reserve EAXRF#E
Share capital fig 4 4,000 =
Reserves 15 (a) 118,480 (10,127)
Total equity/ E#E S (EEEEA
(equity holder’s deficit) B AL) %8 122,480 (10,127)
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary &1+ — R Z i B A 7318 17,263 9,380
Accruals FEETFRIB 303 1,200
Total liabilities BEEHAHE 17,566 10,580
Total equity and liabilities EERAEEHE 140,046 453
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the RARMEEBBEREN2015F6 A
Board of Directors on 24 June 2015 and were signed on 4B EEEFESH A WHTIAL
its behalf. RREE -
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
2|4 %8 R B &
Director Director
EBZE EBZE
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e PR ERR M

27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 27 XATMNEEEEREHERD

THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Note (a): Hiit(a) -
Reserve movement of the Company KATMNREE
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R RE Hitt k5 2 EE @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

TET TET TAT TET

At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A31 A - - (8,522) (8,522)
Loss for the year AEEER - - (1,605) (1,605)
At 31 March 2014 R201454 818 - - (10,127) (10,127)
Loss for the year AFEEEBR - - (13,213) (13,213)
Surplus arising on issue of R —FR B2 G

shares in exchange for METRHDEER

shares in a subsidiary & (F:1.2)

(note 1.2) - 5,927 - 5,927
Share issued pursuant to BEERET

the Capitalisation Issue BTG (F51.2)

(note 1.2) (3,000) - - (3,000)
Share issued under Share BERHEES

Offer (note 1.2) BRI G (F1.2) 149,000 - - 149,000
Share issuance costs SR (10,107) - - (10,107)
At 31 March 2015 R2015463H318 135,893 5,927 (23,340) 118,480

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange thereof.

A E) A HE M S P AREE = 0
BVIMEEFEBBAANRR AL
BREEMBETRAMENEZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EEEMNERER
(a) Directors’ emoluments @ =Z=Me
The remuneration of every director of the Company M eE7FTiIEEE 5T A B TR A
which were included in the staff costs as disclosed HNAAFRESHE SIS a0
in note 7 is set out below: I

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ201553F3RLFE
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  Directors’  to pension

Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total
Exm
BAREcE

ik e BBEAL  EEEE  FHOER L

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TER TER TER TR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Lau Chun Ming * 2RI 5 A - 767 - 643 - 1,40
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok * BRE L L - 810 - 600 18 1,428
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARF k& - 810 - 600 18 1,428
Ms. Leung Lai So PEHLT - 426 - 324 - 750

Independent non-executive B FH T

directors B
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, ~ Ftt2#%

Roderick (note) 130 - - - - 130
Mr. Chu Tak Sum (note) FEREE 130 - - - - 130
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold (note) ~ EXB %4 130 - - - - 130

390 2,813 - 2,167 36 5,406
Note: Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Chu Tak Bt - FHE2HIR REREE
Sum and Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold were appointed as & E KBS A Ro0144
the Company’s independent non-executive directors QA15HEZE AKX A
on 15 September 2014. B IEHITES
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e PR ERR M

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

28 EEEANLER(E)

(@)

BEEMe (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HZ201453A308 L5 E

Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Directors”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total
EEXm
RINEEE
ok e  BBRL  EBZEE  ELOER £
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THL THL THL FEL TEL TAT
Executive directors HTE=S
Mr. Lau Chun Ming * BRI - 720 - 600 - 1,320
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok * 2R B 4 - 720 - 600 15 1,335
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ey - 677 - 643 15 1,335
Ms. Leung Lai So PEEHLT - 336 - 324 - 660
- 2,458 - 2,167 30 4,650
# Chairman # TE
= Chief Executive Officer i 1TRAEE

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii)
received or paid emoluments in respect of services
in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; and
(i) waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
(2014: same).

SAM WOO HOLDINGS LIMITED | =HI&EEERA A

LM EEZFESIERAS
EEER/RERBAEEET
BERANEE R A KB W
M -

RE E2015F3A31H L FE
N BERAQAES)RES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

e B RRME

28 EEEMNRERE)

(o)

EENXRS  ZHAEHNE
Az

RERKFAERESRHE - H8
RRBWER—HRIZLBEARTA
ESEERRAREAEAER
AEARRARRBEBNEAR
5 REREHNEE-
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Financial Summary

PEHE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEBRKOMEN BFEENE HIZELE
and equity of the Group for the last four financial years is as REE BRNLEZRBMAOT o

follows.
Year ended 31 March
HZESAMHLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Results 4 FERr T & FHET
Revenue A 851,285 492,734 375,147 98,428
Gross Profit E 306,245 165,634 102,590 32,692
Profit before income tax & BT 15 B A i A 241,010 129,895 68,271 25,996
Income tax expense stz (21,842) (2,809) (12,649) (1,788)
Profit for the year F 5% F 219,168 127,086 55,622 24,208
As at 31 March
M3H31H
2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET THT TAT TFAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMEEE 513,389 403,802 315,897 206,978
Current assets mMEEE 472,831 223,670 138,951 61,852
Total assets BEBE 986,220 627,472 454,848 268,830
Liabilities af&
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 184,453 69,652 85,481 48,151
Current liabilities mENB & 273,987 339,101 227,734 134,668
Total liabilities BEBE 458,440 408,753 313,215 182,819
Total equity BB 527,780 218,719 141,633 86,011
Note: Hiaz -
The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the AEEEE F20129F - 2013F K2014F3 7
three years ended 31 March 2012, 2013 and 2014 and of the assets, 31 I = AFEEFHEE EERK2012
equity and liabilities as at 31 March 2012, 2013 and 2014 have been F -~ 201834 M2014F3H31HMEE * #Em
extracted from the Prospectus. LEEMENREEEBRER -
The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2011 was not BARASE I EE Z201143H31H IEF
disclosed as consolidated financial statements for the Group have not ERHEGAMBRE  MABEEZFED
been prepared for that year. B 75 BB} o

AR TEREEZWHREN — B

o

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

D
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